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April 2. 2020

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord. New Hampshire 03301
REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Long Term Supports and
Services, to enter into a Retroactive amendment to an existing contract and exercise a renewal option
with Amoskeag Health (formerly known as Manchester Community Health Center) (Vendor # 157247-
B001), 145 Hollis Street, Manchester, NH 03101, to provide coordinated, culturally sensitive, family-
centered comprehensive assessments and consultation services for children with complex health care
needs by increasing the price limitation by $456,250 from $880,000 to $1,336,250 and by extending the
completion date from March 31, 2020 to June 30, 2021, effective upon Governor and Executive Council
approval. 25% Federal Funds, 75% General Funds.

This agreement was originally approved by the Governor and Executive Council on March 21,
2018 (Item #7A).

Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Years 2020 and 2021, upon the
availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust
budget line items within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the
Budget Office, if needed and justified.

05-095-093-930010-51910000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVS, HHS: DEVELOPMENTAL SERVICES, DIVISION OF LONG TERM SUPPORTS AND
SERVICES, SPECIAL MEDICAL SERVICES.

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

(Modified)
Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Modified

Budget

2018 561-500911 Specialty Clinics 93001000 $110,000 $0 $110,000

2019 561-500911 Specialty Clinics 93001000 $440,000 $0 $440,000

2020 561-500911 Specialty Clinics 93001000 $330,000 $91,250 $421,250

2021 561-500911 Specialty Clinics 93001000 $0 $365,000 $365,000

Total $880,000 $456,250 $1,336,250
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EXPLANATION

This request is Retroactive because this item was previously submitted and the Department was
requested to reassess the contract duration due to the COVID-19 Emergecy. The Department is
resubmitting with shorter contract duration of fifteen (15) months.The purpose of this request is to
continue providing medical and consultation services for children in New Hampshire who have complex
medical needs that may include, but are not limited to, neuromotor conditions. The Complex Care
Network consists of interdisciplinary teams of health care professionals who deliver specialized medical
services to children with complex health conditions.

Approximately 110 unique patients will be served and more than 300 consultations will be
provided from March 31, 2020 through June 30, 2021.

The original agreement, included language in Exhibit C-1 Revisions to General Provisions that
allows the Department to renew the contract for up to twenty-four (24) months, subject to the continued
availability of funding, satisfactory performance of service, parties' written authorization and approval
from the Governor and Executive Council.. The Department is in agreement with renewing services for
fifteen (15) months of the twenty-four (24) at this time.

The Complex Care Network of health care professionals integrated new services, coordinated
service delivery, and improved the linkages between health care providers, educational providers, and
community service agencies. The coordination of care eliminated duplication of services and assured
that 130 children in need of specialized medical services receive timelyand appropriate care.

Amoskeag Health will continue providing a single point of access to services for comprehensive
specialty consultation that draws upon community resources for the provision of those services. The
Contractor will continue to identify developmental pediatricians, specialty care providers, community-
based psychologists, allied health providers, special education experts and local coordinators to
participate as members of interdisciplinary teams, as needed, to effectively provide assessment and
consultation services to families.

Additionally, the Contractor will continue providing interdisciplinary clinic services that are
scheduled within a routine frequency and provide complex care education and training to health care
providers, school professionals and caregivers. The Contractor's care coordinator will provide monitoring
and coordination of services for the children and their families.

The Department will monitor the effectiveness of contract services through the following
performance measures:

•  85% of parents or guardians of Children with Special Healthcare Needs who receive
services from Complex Care Network providers and complete a biennial Department-

■  distributed Family Satisfaction Survey report satisfaction with services provided by the
Complex Care Network.

■  100% of referrals to Complex Care Network are recorded and reported monthly.

■  100% of records from each clinic visit and consultation with Complex Care Network service
provider, with individual or parental permission, will be shared with the Medical Home of the
Children with Special Healthcare Needs annually.

■  100% of all intake assessments include, but are not limited to:

o Medical needs.

o Developmental and educational needs,

o Equipment needs.
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Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, the Complex Care
Network may not be sustained and children with complex medical needs may not receive needed
specialty medical services, coordinated treatment, consultation, and continuity of care.

Area served: Statewide.

Source of Funds: 25% Federal Funds from United States Department of Health and Human
Services. Maternal and Child Health Services Title ,V Block Grant and 75% General Funds. CFDA
#93.994/ FAIN #B09SM010035.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available. General Funds will not be requested to
support this program.

Re tfully s m

t eLori A. Shibif

Commissioner'

The Department of Health and Human Services' Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Neuromotor and Complex Care Program

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #1 to the Neuromotor and Complex Care Network Contract

This 1st Amendment to the Neuromotor and Complex Care Program contract (hereinafter referred to as
"Amendment #1") Is by and between the State of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human
Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or "Department") and Amoskeag Health (formerly known
as Manchester Community Health Center), (hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor"), a non-profit
corporation with a place of business at 145 Hollis Street. Manchester, NH 03101.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on March 21, 2018, (Item #7A), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms
and conditions specified In the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work, payment
schedules or terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37. General Provisions, Paragraph 18 and Exhibit C-1 Revisions to
General Provisions, Paragraph 3,the Contract may be extended and amended upon written agreement of
the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, Increase the price limitation, and
modify the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

WHEREAS, all terms and conditions of the Contract not inconsistent with this Amendment #1 remain in
full force and effect; artd

NOW THEREFORE, In consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
In the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37. General Provisions, Block 1.3. Contractor Name, to read;

Amoskeag Health.

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.7. Completion Date, to read:

June 30, 2021.

3. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8. Price Limitation, to read:

$1,336,250.

4. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.9, Contracting Officer for State Agency, to read:

Nathan D. White. Director.

5. Form P-37, General Provisions. Block 1.10, State Agency Telephone Number, to read:

603-271-9631.

6. Modify Exhibit A. Scope of Services by replacing its content In Its entirety with Exhibit A -
Amendment #1. Scope of Services, incorporated by reference and attached herein.

7. Modify Exhibit B, Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment, and replace with Exhibit 8 -
Amendment 1. Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment, incorporated by reference and
attached here.

8. Add Exhibit B-4 - Amendment #1 through Exhibit 8-5 - Amendment #1.

Amoskeag Health Amendment#! ContfaciorInitials ^
RFP-2020-BDS-05-NEURO-A01 Page! of3 Date 04/02/20



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Neuromotor and Complex Care Program

This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

Dale

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and H

art^a^^borah Sch
itie: Director

n Services

Amoskeag Health

04/20/20

Date Narrf^: Kris McCracken
Title; President/CEO

Amoskeag Health

RFP-2020.BDS-05-NEURO-A01

Amendment #1

Page 2 of 3



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Neuromotor and Complex Care Program

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

ame:

itte; \

Date

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

Amoskedg Health Amendment #1

RFP-2020-BDS-05-NEURO-A01 Page 3 of 3



New Hampehire Department of Health and Human Services
Neuromotor and Complex Care Program

Exhibit A • Amendment 01

Scooe of Services

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services

1.1. The Contractor wiD submit a detailed descriplion of the language assistance services
they will provide to persons with limited English proficiency to ensure meaningful
access to their programs and/or services within ten (10) days of the contract effective
date.

1.2. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New
Hampshire General Court or federal or stale court orders may have an impact on the
Services described herein, the State Agency has the right to modify Service priorities
and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve compliance
therewith.

1.3. The Contractor shall provide services under this Contract to children and youth, from
birth to twenty-one (21) years old, with Complex Care needs that may Include
neuromotor conditions, who reside in New Hampshire, with an emphasis on services
for children and families who:

f

1.3.1. Do not have timely access to comprehensive specialty consultation
services from other sources.

1.3.2. Do not have health insurance:

1.3.3. Have conditions requiring a comprehensive team approach for adequate
access to services.

1.3.4. Are medically fragile or have complex health care needs.

2. Scope of Services

2.1. The Contractor shall identify developmental pedlatrlclar)(s), specialty care providers,
community-based psychologists, allied health providers, special education experts,
and local coordinators, to participate as members of interdisciplinary teams, as
needed, to effectively provide assessment and consultation services, and participate
as part of Interdisciplinary clinics.

2.2. The Contractor shall establish and maintain a Complex Care Network (CCN), to
deliver services to Children with Special Healthcare Needs (CSHCN).

2.3. The Contractor shall receive referrals and con^^lete Intakes and assessments to
determine the consultation and clinical services needed to best address needs of the
child.

t

2.4. The Contractor shall ensure all CSHCN.enrolled in the CCN Program:

2.4.1. Are provided coordinated, ongoing, and comprehensive care within a
Medical Home.

2.4.2. Have access to Community-Based services organized so CSHCNand their
families can access and utilize services easily.

2.4.3. Receive ail services necessary to be able to work and live independently
as adults before atlaining twenly-one (21) years of age. ^

AmosXeag Health Exhibit a Amcndmeniii ConKjctor initials
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N«w Hampfthire Dapartment of Health and Human Servlcas
Neuromotorand Complex Care Program

Exhibit A - Amendment 01

2.5. The Contractor shall provide interdisciplinary clinics scheduled at intervals and
locations as agreed to by the Department, which include, txjt are not limited to;

2.5.1. Complex Care Clinics to:

2.6.1.1. Provide point in time evaluations.

2.5.1.2. Address specific needs identified at the time of intake.

2.5.1.3. Follow up on recommendations from Interdisciplinary teams.

2.5.1.4. Make referrals to other specialists, such as an orthopedist, as
appropriate.

2.5.2. InterdiscipKnary specialty consultation specific to each child that includes,
but is not limited to:

2.5.2.1. Coordination of treatment between professional service
providers.

2.5.2.2. Sharing of expert consultation.

2.5.2.3. Communication of treatment recommendations to:

2.5.2.3.1. Health care providers.

2.5.2.3.2. School support teams.

2.5.2.3.3. Careglvers.

2.5.2.4. Provision of Complex Care education and training to:

2.5.2.4.1. Heallh care providers.

2.5.2.4.2. School support teams.

2.5.2.4.3. Caregivers.

2.5.3. Development of an individual evaluation report for each CSHCN who
receives services from the CCN that includes, but is not limited to;

2.5.3.1. An assessment of individual and family concerns, where
applicable.

2.5.3.2. Recommendations that address findings including, but not limited
to;

2.5.3.2.1. Referrals.

2.6.3.2.2. Type of service.

2.5.3.2.3. Frequency of service.

2.5.3.3. A plan for communication with:

2.5.3.3.1, Heallh care providers.

2.5.3.3-2. School support teams.

2.5.3.3.3. Caregivers.

2.6. The Contractor shall direct and oversee Clinic Coordinators and Interdisciplinary
teams in all services provided, which include, but are not limited to: ^

Amostceag Heallh Exhibit A Amenirmcn *1 Conif*ciof inii-a's
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Neuromotor and Complex Care Program

Exhibit A - Amendment d1

2.6.1. Intake.

2.6.2. Triage.

2.6.3. Cor>sultation.

2.6.4. Assessment Evaluations.

2.6.5. Diagnostic Evaluations.

2.6.6. Development of individual recommendations.

3. Staffing

3.1. The Contractor shall establish and maintain program personnel policies and
procedures, which Include but are not limited to;

3.1.1. Procedures for selection and dismissal of staff, volunteers and others. '

3.1.2. Policjes for delivering or coordinating.

3.1.3. Procedures for supporting students and Interns interested in working with
CSHCN.

3.1.4. Procedures for verifying staff, volunteer and student trainee or intern
qualifications. ^

3.2. The Contractor shall ensure program personnel policies and procedures are
accessible and available to all agency staff and Special Medical Services.

3.3. The Contractor shall ensure Clinic Coordinators qualifications include, but are not
limited to;

3.3.1. Registered Nurse with a Master's or Bachelor's degree and iwo (2) years
of experience in care coordination or working within community programs
serving CYSHCN or.

3.3.2. Registered Nurse with an Associate's degree in nursing and four (4) years
of experience In care coordination or working within community programs
serving CYSHCN or.

3.3.3. Licensed Master Social Worker (LMSW) and one (1) year of experience In
care coordination or with community programs serving CYSHCN or,

3.3.4. Licensed Social Worker with a Bachelor's degree and Iwo years of
experience in care coordination or with community programs serving
CYSHCN.

3.4. The Contractor may provide one (1) or more Orthopedic Specialists whose
qualifications Include, but are not limited to:

3.4.1. Completed residency or fellowship training in orthopedics, with a particular
focus on pediatrics and rehabilitative medicine.

3.4.2. Knowledge of a wide range of neuromotor problems in children.

3.4.3. Skill in physical assessment and Interpretation of diagnostic neuromotor
problems.

Amoakeag Health Exhitxt a Amendnwx t j Coou«cioi inWib
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Neuromotorand Complex Care Program

Exhibit A • Amendment #1

3.4.4. Ten years' experience in orthopedics, Including but not limited to five years'
experience serving a pedialric population within a family or developmental
context.

3.4.5. Abifity to work with children and other health professionals within a
multidisclplinarv framework.

3.4.6. Ability to travel within the State on assignment.

3.5. The Contractor shall provide Developmental Pediatricians whose quaiirications
include, but are not limited to;

3.5.1. Licensed by the State of New Hampshire, Board of Registration In
Medicine.

3.5.2. Have completed fellowship training In child development, developmental
disabilities, rehabilitative medicine, or have equrva'ent training and
experience.

3.5.3. Have at least five (5) years of experience working with families vrho have
children with special health care needs in a clinical setting.

3.5.4. Have demonstrated strong interpersonal skills in communication with
primary care physicians. k)Cdl early intervention and education agencies,
allied health professionals, and families.

3.5.5. Able to work with children and other health professionals within an
interdisciplinary framevwrk.

3.5.6. • Familiarity with standardized cognitive assessments and their applicability
to children with specific disabilities.

3.6. The Contractor may provide Psychologists whose qualifications include, but are not
limited to:

3.6.1. Licensed by the New Hampshire Board of Examiners of Psychologists as
a certified psychologist.

3.6.2. Possess a Doclorale degree from a recognized college or university with a
major emphasis In child psychology.

3.6.3. Have knowledge of the principles and practices of developmentdl and child
psychology that are required for assessment and treatment of children and
youth with special health care needs. This Includes, but Is not limited to:

3.6.3.1. Sklll ln behavioral observation.

3.6.3.2: Psychological testing (cognitive functioning).

3.6.3.3. Scoring and interpretation.

3.6.3.4. Consullation and counseling.

3^6.4. Five (5) years of experience in child psychology, including no less than
three (3) years of experience serving CSHCN and their families.

3.6.5. Demonstrated ability to work with other health professionals within an
Interdiscipllndry framework.

C

AmosKeag Health Exhibit a Amendment fli Coniradof iniiiits,

ftfP-20t8 BDS-05 N6UftO 0»-A01 Page 4 d 7 Date.



Now Hampohiro Department of Health and Human Sorvfcee
Neuromotor and Complex Care Program

Exhibit A • Amendment 01

3.6.6. Ability to work under the leadership of and take dinica! direction from the
Developmental Pediatrician.

3.7. The Contractor shall provide Community-Based Pediatric Physical Therapists whose
qualifications include, but are not iimiled to;

3.7.1. Licensed by the New Hampshire Office of Professional Licensure and
Certification, Physical Therapy Governing Board.

3.7.2. Completed fallowship or residency training In pediatric physical therapy or
have equivalent training and experience.

3.7.3. Demonstrated ability to work with other health professionals within an
interdisciplinary framework.

3.7.4. Ability to work under the leadership of and take dinical direction from the
Developmental Pediatrician and/or Pediatric Orthopedist.

3.8. The Contractor shall provide professionals and paraprofessionats to assist Care
Coordinators in providing services, which may include but are not limited to:

3.8.1. Specialty physicians.

3.8.2. Therapists.

3.8.3. Family support workers.

3.8.4. Community aides.

3.8.5. Experienced parents.

3.9. The Contractor shall ensure that Paraprofessionals receive appropriate training and
work in collaboration with ar>d under the supervision of professional staff.

3.10. The Contractor shall recruit for positions In the event of any vacancy.

3.11. The Contractor shall notify the Department in writing at least one (1) week prior to
any new employee's start date, when a new coordinator or provider is hired to work
in the program. Information submitted with this holifxallon shall include:

3.11.1. Full name with middle Initial and official start date.

3.11.2. The work phone number and email.

3.11.3. Resume.

3.12. The Contractor shall ensure staff receiving funds under this Contract attends required
pertinent lechnical assistance sessions or progress reviews sponsored by the
DepartrDent.

4. Reporting ^

4.1. The Contractor shall provide monthly reports, in a Department approved format, that
include, but are not limited to:

4.1.1. The undupllcated number, demographic characteristics, and insurance
status of each client receiving services.

4.1.2. Assessment of each client, Includirtg. but not limited to:

4.1.2.1. Referrals.

AmOSkeag Health Exhibit a AmendmenI it. CoMraclOflndlals,

RFP-20I8-8OS-05 HEURO-01A0I Page S oT? Date.



N«w Hampshlr* Dapartment of Health and Human Sarvlcas
Neuromotor and Complex Care Program

Exhibit A • Amendment 01

4.1.2.2. Number of encounlers.

4.1.2.3. Need for financial support.

4.1.2.4. Progress notes,

4.2. The Contractor shall provide annual reports, in a format provided by the Department,
that include, but are not limited to:

4.2.1. Quality assurance activities.

4.2.2. Future plans, including future goals.

4.2.3. Progress toward program objectives.

4.2.4. A narrative describing any problems, obstacles, or hindrances
experienced, Including a plan to address the identified problems, obstacles,
or hindrances.

4.2.5. Statistical measures to evaluate:

4.2.5.1. Successful outcomes.

4.2.5.2. Progress towards program goals.

4.2.5.3. Program effectiveness.

4.2.6. A corrective action plan for any performarice measure not achieved, as
referenced in Section 5.

4.3. The Contractor shall distribute a bi-annual consumer satisfaction survey, provided by
the Department lo families enrolled in services.

4.4. The Contractor shall create and distribute an annual satisfaction survey lo primary
care providers.

4.5. The Contractor shall conduct chart audits and case reviews on an annual basis.

5. Performance Measures

5.-1. The Contractor shall ensure that following performance Indicators are achieved and
monitored monthly to measure the effectiveness of the agreement:

5.1.1. 85% of parents or guardians of CSHCN who receive services from CCN
providers are given a Family Satisfaction Survey to complete bi-annually.

5.1.2. 100% of referrals to CCN are recorded and reported monthly.

5.1.3. 100% of records from each clinic visit or consultation with CCN service
provider, with Individual or parental permission, will be shared with the
Medical Home of the CSHCN annually.

5.1.4. 100% of all intake assessments include, but not be limited to:

5.1.4.1. Medical needs.

5.1.4.2. Developmental and educational needs.

5.1.4.3. Equipment needs.

6. Deliverables
.C

RFP-20ie-B0S-05-NEURO-01AOl , PageSofr 0»le ?ll
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N«w Hamp8hlr« Department of Health and Human Services
Neuromotor and Complex Care Program

Exhibit A - Amendment #1

6.1. The Contractor shall provide a minimum of ten (10) Complex Cafe Clinics In the
Centra) or Southern part of New Hampshire, and deliver services to a minimum of
thirty (30) children.

6.2. The Contractor shall provide a minimum of two (2) Complex Care Clinics in the North
Country area of New Hampshire, and deliver services to a minimum of six (6) children.

' 6.3. The Contractor shall provide a minimum of two (2) additional Complex Care Ciinics
and deliver services to a minimum of six (6) unduplicated children.

6.4. The Contractor shall provide a minimum of 250 consultations that do not take place
in a clinic setting.

6.5. The Contractor shall meet with the Departnnenl quarterly to evaluate progress and
review service metrics.

Amoskeag Health Exhitul a Amendment «i Conirictof initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Neuro Motor and Complex Care Program

Exhibit B - Amendment 1

Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. The State shall pay the Contraclor an amount no! to exceed the Form P-37. Block 1.8,
Price Limitation for the services provided pursuant to Exhibit A. Scope of Services.

2. This Agreement is funded with general funds and federal funds as follows; 25% Federal
Funds from United States Department of Health and Human Services, fraternal and
Child Heallh Services Title V Block Grant CFDA #93.994. FAIN B09SM010035 and
75% General Funds

3. Failure to meet Ihe scope of services may jeopardize the funded Contractor's current
and/or future funding.

4. Payment for said services shall be made monthly as follows:

4.1. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred
In the fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved
line items as specified in Exhibit 6-1 through Exhibit B-6.

4.2. The Contractor shall submit an invoice in a form satisfactory to the Stale by the
twentieth (20'^ working day of each month, which identifies and requests
reimbursement for authorized expenses incurred in the prior month.

4.3. The Contractor shall ensure the invoice is completed, signed, dated and returned
to the Department in order to initiate payment.

4.4. The State shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt
of each Invoice, subsequent to approval of the submitted Invoice and if sufficient
funds are available.

5. The Contractor shall keep detailed records of their activities related to Department-
funded programs and services and have records available for Department review, as
requested.

6. The final invoice shall be due to the State no later than forty (40) days after the'contracl
completion date specified In Form P-37, General Provisions Block 1.7 Completion Date.

7. in lieu of hard copies, all Invoices may be assigned an electronic signature and emailed
to Delrdre.Dunn@dhhs.nh.gov, or invoices may be mailed to:

Financial Administrator

Department of Health and Human Services
Division of Long Term Supports and Services
129 Pleasant Street, Thayer Building
Concord, NH 03301

8. Payments may be withheld pending receipt of required reports or documentation as
idenlified in Exhibit A. Scope of Services and in this Exhibit B.

Amoskedg Keaim Extiibii B - Amendment t Conlractof initials.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Servicee
Neuro Motor and Complex Care Program

Exhibit B - Amendment 1

9. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding
under this agreement may be withheld, in whole or in part. In the event of non-
compliance with any Federal or State law. rule or regulation applicable to the services
provided, or If the said services or products have not been satisfactorily completed In
accordance with the terms and conditions of this agreement.

10:Nolwithstanding paragraph 18 of the General Provisions P-37, changes limited to
adjusting amounts between budget line items, related items, amendments of related
budget exhibits within the price limitation, and to adjusting encumbrances between
State Fiscal Years, may be made by written agreement of both parties and may be
made without obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council.

Amoi>ieag Health
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

1, William M. Ovdncr, Scctcu/y of Stale of ihc Sialo of New Hampthirc, do hereby certify that AMOSK£AO MEALTH ii

a New Hampshire Nofiprofit CorporaiioD registered to hansaci business in New Hampshire on May 07, 1992.1 (hrther certify that

bU feet and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have been received and is in good standing as far as this office is

concerned; and the attached is a true copy of the list of documents on file in this office.

Business (D: 17511S

Certificate Number; 0004694687

9^

Ik

S

fN TESTIMONY WHEREOF.

[ hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the Stale of New Hampshire,

this 6ih day of January A.D. 2020.

William M. Gardner

Secretary of State



CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

1. David Cresoo. hereby certify thai:
(Name of the elected Officer of ihe Corporation/LLC: cannol be conlract signatory)

1.1 am a duly elected Clerk/Secretary of Amoskeao Health fformerfv Manchester Connmunitv Health Center).
(Corporaliort/LLC Name)

2. The follov/ing is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Oirectors/shareholders, duly called and
held on March 3. 2020. at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voling.

(Date)

VOTED: That Kris McCracken. President/CEO (may list more than one person)
(Man-.e and Title of Conlract Signato'y)

Is duly authorized on behalf of Amoskeao Health fformerlv Manchester Community Health Center) to enter into
(Name of Corporation or LLC)

contracts or agreements with the State of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is
authorized to execute any and all documents, agreements and olher instruments, and any amendments, revisions,
or modificalions thereto, which may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect Ihe purpose of this vote.

3. 1 hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains In full force and effect as of the
dale of Ihe contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. I further certify that it is understood that the
State of New Hampshire wiif rely oh this certiricale as evidence that Ihe person(s) listed above currently occupy
the positlon(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any
limils on Ihe authority of any listed Individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the Stale of New Hampshire,
ail such limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated: ^
(NameandnUe) ^

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

County of.

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this V'' day of «r < K
1)

2QJ0.

Byli
(Name of Elected Cl^K/Secrelary of the Agency)

(Notary Public/Justice of the Peace)

(NOTARY SEAL)

Comm'ssion Expires;

JAELL.ROBEROe
Notary Public

Stale of New Hampshire
My Commission Expires

August 28.2024

Rev. 09/23/19



MANCCOM-01

ACORCf'

PCAMTLIN

OATt IKMnXVrYTY)

TMI« rPDTttirATP IS laaUED as A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
nftM NOT i^lR^ NE0AT1\^ AMEND. EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BYTWEPOUCIES

BELOW THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING IN8URER18), AUTHORIZED
pPPBFftPUTATIve OR PRODUCER. AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the eertlflcale holder la an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the
If StISROOATION IS WAIVED, aul^ect to the terms and condltiona of
Ihia certUlcarte doea not confer riaftla to the cartlflciie holder In lieu of au

poilcy(lea) must hava ADDITIONAL INSURED provNIens or ba andoraad.
he policy, certain pollcSaa may requlra an endorsement. A atatement on
ch andoraementfa).

pROOvcsK LlF^Daa 0 AQR81S0
Clark Insuranca
One Smdlal Ava Suit# 302N
Manchester,NH 03103

Iiti (6031622-2858 15u5.Noi:(e03) 622.2854
(ilML.. lnfoAclarkinaurance.com

MiiiRCRisi arrowxHo coveiuoE NAica

. .Sateeth/e Insurance Company of the Southeast 38926

iMSunta

Atnoakeag Health
14S Hellia Street
Mancheator. NH 03101

i>Ki*tRB:CltJ7en» Ins Co of America ...

■rNrwYRR AIX SDer.lattv Insurance Co
31634

12833

tfWURCR P: 1

C^lcJTe'S<TMSS?DOft^VP^^ HEREIN .SSUBJECTTOAU THE TERMS.
EXaUSlONS AND CONPITIOMS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMfTS SHOWN MAY HAVE EgEN REOUCED BY f

MM
m. TVPB Of w$muwce

n7jaE2E3 POLICY NUMNK

CMMSRCIAL aCMCAAL LIAMtTY

[ CLAIUS-liAOe OCCUR

L«CO

Xl pacY
OTHgR5

.8P6R:
IOC

WTOMOAUUABIUTY

ANY AUTO

JWONLY
HS^&ONLY

UMSMLIA LIAS
ucessuAB

OCCUR

CtAlMS-MAOC

S 2291049

UMrrs

5 2291049

060 I fteTCNTlONS

I M(. dncrtb* undernfir'jiiPTiON OF OPERATIOnS 6t<»w
nCA Oap LUblttty
PICA 08p Liability

H/A

3 2291049

11/1/2019

INBVH092S16

11/1/2019

11/1/2020

11/1/2030

11/1/2019

L1VA$15491

L1VA$15491

11/1/2019

7/1/2019

7/1/2019

RENTCO

uPOP;tPrArh><y»o«rvyi>

omxnuAL tAoviNJURY

ftPMPBAL AGQR6CAT6

pBr«-.iirT^.gOMPrQBAGG

COMBtNCDSWOVEllMlT

BOOILY INJURY (Per oerwi)

ftaoTY INJURY (Per e{«i(Nni|

r

11/1/2020

11/1/2020

7/1/2020

7/1/2020

ig?£as?r^

EACKOCfMRRENCe

AtMHEQAte

PER
STATUTE

PL EACHACCIOErO

P. (WASP. PA EMPLOYEE

E I. DIStASE-POLICY UMIT

Each Incidtnt

Aggragata

1,000,000
300,000
10,000

1,000,000
3,000,000
3,000,000

1,000,000

4,000,000
4,000,000

500,000
500,000
600,000

1,000,000
3,000.000

OeawnOH op operations / LOCATIOHS/ vehicles IACORO lei, Ad«l(p«.l Mrnem* ««h.4 j.. "»Y he •««•»•« a r»ie '* rtfluliedl

CgRIIFlCATE HOLDER

Stato of Naw Hampshlra
Oopariment of Hasith and Human Sorvlces
129 Pleasant Street
Concord, NH 03301

cancellation

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE 06SCRI8EO POLICIES BE CANCEU^O OEfORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELtVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORBEDREPRESIHTATIVe

ACORO 25 (2016W3) ® 1988'201S ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORO name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



A^CORD'
MANCCOM-01

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

PCAWTLIN

OAttfUWOonrvrT)

1/22/2020

THIS cennncATe is issueo as a matter of information only and confers no rights upon TNeceRiificATe holder, this
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND. EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFOROEO BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OP INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRAOT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S}. AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER. AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If Iht €«rtlfU*t» hoU«r It an ADDITIONAL INSURED, lit* p<>lley(lM) mutl havt ADDITIONAL INSURED provlalent or be ondorttd.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, aubitct to Iht Itrmt and conditlontof Iht p^lcy, ctrtain pollclts may itqulit an tndorttmtnt A aUttmtnt on
ttila ctflUlcato dooa eonftr rIoMt to Ihi oartlfltatt holdtr In llto of auch andofatmanUa).

LteonaaP Ad^aiSC

Cta/k Intursnct
Ono Sundial Ava Sulla M2N
Utneha«tar.NH03l03

iari
rAgg^t.ii:(60_3) 622-26SS
Igm^n.lnToficiirklrauranco.com

... _i wc n.i:(603) 622-2a$4

anutmti Arronomo covtnAOi

Munco

wiiwuaAiSaiacilva insuranca Company ot tha Southaaal 3S926

i wauata a :Clllien» Ins Co of Amartca 31S34
Afnoahaae Haallh
14SHolIla Straat
Mancltaslar. NHOSIOt

wawtac^AlX Spocialtv Inauranca ,Co,

iHtumao-

12833

-fBliStUj _..

iHauwufi

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF'INSURANCE USTEO BELOW HAVE SEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ASOVE FOR THE POLICY PERlOO
INDICATED HOTWirKSTANOINO ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER OOCUMENTVMTHRESPECT TO WHICH TWS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUEO OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFOROEO BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED KEAEINIS SUBJECTTOALL THE TERMS
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS

lAMTawan
TvaierwtLMANCi POUCYKlMWa

poucviPF I noiicvejtp
luaraiKiOptttn. iMMrnniyyvyt'tMumrwTY'rT

COMMCRCUl OCHCAAL lUtAIIY

' OAMS'UAOe f X i OCCUR
I

8.2291045 11/1/2019 11/1/2020

tAmocgunaewce

I  AOORtOAie LMir awies pcr;
. fx^ PoncY I : I ! IOC

OTHtW

TORfNrEO
9tCiot«wi«K|)....' ».

Mto exFlAnrcn«e»flenl _

PeRjMHUtAOV «A«*_ ; t

CgNgRAl ACOHtOATf

l.W9esSJa^»i&fi£A5C^.t.

1^00,000
300.006

ioImo
iiOOliMO
3,OQ0;O0O
3.000.DOO

±.
A 1 MiTQMoaae ma».nv

i  ANYM/TO _

LLKlSmoHiy JfJJfStfcm?
I

S 2291045 tl/1/2019 11/1/2020

I coua>'<(os<NCieiuiiT
ueutfidieu !j.

i..»ooiiY.iMjonY (n«« pciKi ..'.V-

1.000,000

A ' uwaacLuttiAB • X occur

Exceaaiua cuu»js->jaoe

I  oeo : ' RfiKNiioNa

S 2291045 11/1/2019 I 11/1/2020
• EACflMCLFffitHCe . I

.AfiSSWAie...,,.. }

4,000.000

'4.000.000

® l)S?S5RoS?S<SSK
iAMrWtOHUerORPAATM^XCCUtlve

y/H WeVH092215 11/1/2019 ; 11/1/2020

; H iM, a*Kra*
■ rfX^yiiOHOFORfHAWNSt

bliity L1VA51S491

L1VA51S491

X elxiuTr !

.  ....It

ei.Dl8t*Sg-P01ICYt.l».tfT • i

■ 600,000

600,000

600,000

C iFTCA Gap Liability

0 'PTCA Gap Liability
7/1/2019 ;

7/1/2019

7/1/2020

7/1/2020

Eachincldant

Aggregate

1,000.000

3.000.000

MaCRPTtONePefeM1IOM9/I.OCATtOHSfVe»«Cies IACMB hi. A*«>e>)iiRt«i>li>S(M«N.inira*«la<Meiin>«<*«»«c«l>rMvk«tf)

State of New Hampshire
Daparlmanl of Health and Human Sarvlcea
129 Peasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF. NOTICE WILL OE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVIStONS.

AUTHOA'ZeO RCPftCSENTATIVE

ACORD 2S (2016/03) (MS68-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

Tha ACORO name and logo are registered marks ol ACORD



AMOSKEAG
HEALTH

MISSION

To improve the health and well-being of our patients and the

communities we serve by providing exceptional care and services

that are accessible to all.

VISION

We envision a healthy and vibrant community with strong families

and tight social fabric that ensures everyone has the tools they
need to thrive and succeed.

CORE VALUES

We believe in:

o Promoting wellness and empowering patients through

education

o Removing barriers so that our patients achieve and maintain
their best possible health

o Providing exceptional, evidence-based and patient-centered

care

o Fostering an environment of respect, integrity and caring
where all people are treated equally with dignity and courtesy

IS



Berry Dunn

AMOSKEAG
HEALTH

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2019 and 2018

With Independent Auditor's Report



BerryDunn

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Board of Directors
Manchester Community Health Center

d/b/a Amoskeag Health

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Manchester Community Health Center
d/b/a AmosI<eag Health, which comprise the balance sheets as of June 30. 2019 and 2018, and the
related statements of operations, functional expenses, changes In net assets and cash flows for the
years then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management Is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles; this includes the design.
Implementation and maintenance of Internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material mlsslaiement, whether due to fraud or error..

Auditor's ResponsibUity

Our responsibility Is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits In accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards
require that \we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance aboul whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit Involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence aboul the amounts and disclosures In
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate In the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's Internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opirdon.

Maine- • lri.n\Man»i)slih« • Majsoc^-uselli • Connccteool • V/i.'sl Vi.glnio . A/iron;*
t«{rydunn,cocn



Board of Directors
Manchester Community Health Center

d/b/a Amoskeag Health
Page 2

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to at>ove present fairly. In all material respects, the
financial position of Martchester Community Health Center d/b/a Amoskeag Health as of June 30.2019
and 2018, and the results of Its operations, changes in Us net assets and its cash flows for the years
then ended. In accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

Change In Accounting Principle
y

As discussed in f^ote 1 to the financial statements. In 2019 Manchester Community Health Center
d/b/a /Amoskeag Health adopted new accounting guidance. Firiancial Accounting Standards Board
Accounting Standards Update No. 2016-14. Presentallon of Financial Statements of Not-for-profit
Entities (Topic 958). Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Portland. Maine
Novembers, 2019



MANCHESTER COMMUNITY HEALTH CENTER
D/B/A AMOSKEAG HEALTH

Balance Sheets

June 30,2019 and 2018

ASSETS

Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Patient accounts recelveble, net
Grants and other receivables
Other current assets

Total current assets

Property and equipment, net

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Currenl liabilities
Line of credit

Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accrued payroll and related expenses
Current maturities of long-term debt

Total currenl liabilities

Long-term debt, less current maturities

Total liabilities

Net assets

Without donor restrictions
With donor restrictions

Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

2018

$ 1,368,835 $ 1,045,492
1.890,683 1,704,091
1,063,463 523,673
174.461 185.012

4.497,442 3.539,068

4.397.203 4.659.?47

S 8.894.645 ,S 8.189.415

$  450,000 $ 1.185,000

576,623 683,461
1,210,890 1.116,406

46.366 53.722

2,283,881 2,938,589

1.594.959 1.153.279

3.878.840 4.091.868

4,409,285 3,392.211
606.520 705.336

5.015.80S 4.097.547

i 8.B94.645 S 8.189.415

The accompanying notes are an Integral part of these financial statements.

-3-



MANCHESTER COMMUNITY HEALTH CENTER
D/B/A AMOSKEAG HEALTH

Statements of Operations

Years Ended June 30.2019 and 2018

Operating revenua
Patient service revenue

Provision for bad debts

Net patient service revenue

Grants, contracts and support
Other operating revenue
Net assets released from restriction for operations

Total operatlrtg revenue

Operating expenses
Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Program supplies
Contracted services
Occupancy
Other
Depreciation and amortization
interest

Total operating expenses

Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenses

Net assets released from restriction for capital acquisition

Increase In net assets without donor restrictions

2fllS 2018

$10,543,526 $ 9,898.890
1380.456) f749.930)

10,163,070 9.148,960

8,260,664 7,304,866
546.428 180,701

1.066.720 1.927.841

20.036.882 17.662.368

11,994,846 11,109,774
2.270.095 2,206,269

525,199 501,734
2,175,172 2.381,708
716,607 671,108
841,861 760,400
428,159 402.532
100.845 91.771

19.052.784 18.125.296

984,098 (462.928)

32.976 764.059

S 1.017.074 S  301.131

The accompanying notes are an Integral part of these financial statements.

•4-



MANCHESTER COMMUNITY HEALTH CENTER
D/B/AAMOSKEAG HEALTH

Statements of Functional Expenses

Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

2019

Hwthcart Sfvic«s

Salaries anOwa^es
Employae benefits
Pro9<vn suppSes
Contracted services
Oeeupaney .
Other

DepredaOon and
amonization

Interest

Total

Non-cBncal

Support
Servrtes

t 1.697,021

323.075
1.047

70.373
121.143

58.708

Ertabfin^
Services

510.217

97.809
5.896

251.088
10A49
0.528

Sehavioral

Health

t 1.752.059
330.299
39.987

202.3S2
105.959
109,127

3.530

Pharmacy Medcal

34.993

0,400
2S4.201
336,857

4.260

482

5.377^37

932.471
217,078

445,115
687,382
137,613

45,077

Special
MetScai
Proorams

;  845.292
104.397

5,211
395,557

110,132
31.160

474

Community
Services

5  115.735

20.419
1.030

220.523

25.718

Total

HeaXhcare

Services

510.333.754

1374.938
524,510

1327305
1.051325
309330

49,081

AdministfUive and Suooort Servieas

Marked
and

Pac«tv FundmisinQ

5 120.979 5
22.421

412

21325
(516.379)

50,513

255,603
__39.219

144,803
27,986

120

21302
17.188

30.580

1395350
344.745

157

204,580
104.375
379.432

123.475
01.020

Total

511394340
2370,095

52 V 99
2.17 V 72
716.607
841,801

428.159
100.845

5 2.2T7.96T 5 888.147 5 2.S43.913 5 037.259 5 7J41.973 5 1.558.223 5 383.425 51O.130.9O7 5. 5  248337 5 2.073.640 519.052.784

2016

Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Program supplies
Contracted services

Oocupency
Omcr
Oepredatiorv and

amortization

Interest

Total

Healthcare Services

Ncrv-d'nical

Support Ertabftng
Services SWY?m

5 1350.575
303.556

25
110.040
107.090
35.997

511.036
121,183
19.582

192.406
14.043

8326

Behavioral
Heeilh

S 1.360.597
322.169
15.791

209.030
93.948

33,186

Pharmacy

229.960

313,746
- 3.770

383

Medical

66.037 5 5.125.736

15.812 076.442
227.957

419,183
597.530
126.640

20.580

Special

Medical

Pmcrams

>  834.055
170.542

5.422
383343
102.757

34.815

127

Community
Services

5  208.923
48.042

2.408
388.039

47.644

Total

Healthcare
Services

5 9.655.559
1.719.746

501,143
1.996.887
919.738

^287.193

25.707

Adminlstfaiiya af>d SuOQOft Services

Martcting
and

Faoier FundfaWno AdmWstraHon Total

45.163
8.984

118

19.492
(408.934)

57.639

242.096
35.442

134.754

».312

49221
15207

27.650

1.274.298
447.227

473

316.108
145.097

387.918

133.729
S6 329

511.109.774

Z206269
501.734

2.381.708
671.108
760.400

402.532
91.771

5 2.167.283 5 867.376 5 2035.323 8 1.511.561 5_^1^ 515.106,973 S. S  257.144 5 2 761.179 518.125.296

The accompanying notes are an integral part of ttiese financial slatements.

♦5-



MANCHESTER COMMUNITY HEALTH CENTER
D/B/A AM0SKEA6 HEALTH

Statements of Changes In Net Assets

Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

2019 2018

Net assets without donor restrictions

Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenses
Net assets released from restriction for capital acquisition

$  984,098
32.976

S  (462.928)
764.059

Increase In net assets without donor restrictions 1.017.074 301.131

Net assets with donor restrictions

Contributions

Net assets released from restriction for operations
Net assets released from restriction for capital acquisition

1,000,880
(1,066,720)

(32.9761

1,585,719
(1,027,841)
(754.059)

Decrease In net assets with donor restrictions m.m) {^05.191)

Change in net assets 918,258 94.950

Net assets, beginning of year 4.097.547 4.002.597

Net assets, end of year S 5.015.805 S 4.097.547

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

-6-



MANCHESTER COMMUNITY HEALTH CENTER
D/B/A AMOSKEAG HEALTH

Statements of Cash Flows

Years Ended June 30.2019 and 2018

2019 2018

Cash flows from operating activities
Change In net assets
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash

provided by operating activities
Provision for bad debts
Depreclatbn and amortization
Equity in earnings from limited liability company
Contributions and grants for long*term purposes
(Increase) decrease In the following assets

Patient accounts receivable

Grants and other receivables

Prepaid expenses
Increase (decrease) in the following liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accrued payroll and related expenses

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Capital expenditures

Net cash used by Investing activities

Cash flov/s from financing acllvilles
Contributions and grants for long-term purposes
Proceeds from line of credit
Payments on line of credit
Payments on long-term debt

Net cash (used) provided by financing activities

Net Increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information
Cash paid for Interest
Non-cash transactions

Line of credit refinanced as long-term debt

$  918.258 $ 94,950

380,456
428,159

(486,248)
(539,790)
,10,551

(6,838)
94.484

799.032

749,930
402,532
(2.291)

(475,001)

(533,881)
476,961
(30.721)

(152,163)

57.120

f174.314l M.Q120511

<174.3141 f1.Q12.Q51)

. 475.001

. 450,000
(235,000) (75.000)
(66.3751 (51.7901

(301.3751 798.211

323,343 373,602

1.045.492 671.890

i 1.368.835 $ 1.045.192

i  100.845 $ 91.771

5  SOO.OOO $ :

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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MANCHESTER COMMUNITY HEAUTH CENTER
OfB/A AMOSKEAG HEALTH

Notes to Financial Statements
r

June ZO, 2019 and 2018

1. Summary of Significant Accountino PQlicles

Organization

Manchester Community Health Center d/b/a Amoskeag Hiealth (the Organization) is a not-for-profit
corporation organized in New Hampshire. The Organization is a Federally Qualified Health Center
(FQHC) providing high-quality, comprehensive family oriented primary healthcare services which
meet the rteeds of a diverse community, regardless of age, ethnicity or Income.

Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncement

In August 2016, the Financial Accounting Standards Board Issued Accounting Standards Update
<ASU) No. 2016-14, Presentation of Financial Statamants of Not-for-profit Entities (Topic 958),
which makes targeted changes to the not-for-profit financial reporting model. The ASU marks the
completion of the first phase of a larger project aimed at Improving not-for-profit financial reporting.
Under the ASU, net asset reporting is streamlined and clarified. The existing three category
classification of net assets Is replaced with a simplified model that combines temporarily restricted
and permanently restricted into a single category called 'net assets with donor restrictions." The
guidance simplined the reporting of deficiencies in endowment funds and clarified the accounting
for the lapsing of restrictions on gifts to acquire property, plant and equipment. New disclosures
wNch highlight restrictions on the use of resources that make otherwise liquid assets unavailable
for meeting near-term rmancial requirements have been added. The ASU also imposes several
new requirements related to reporting expenses. The Organization has adjusted the presentation
of these statements accordingly. The ASU has been applied retrospectively to 2018; however,
there was no Impact to total net assets, results of operations or cash flows.

Basis of Presentation

The financial statements of the Organization have t>een prepared in accordance with U.S.
generally accepted accounting principles (U.S. GAAP). which requires the Organization to report
information in the financial stalements according to the following net asset classifications;

Net assets without donor restrictions: Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed
restrictions and may be expended for any purpose in performing the primary objectives of the
Organization. These net assets may be used at the discretion of the Organization's management
and the Board of Directors.

Net assets with donor restrictions: Net assets subject to stipulations imposed by donors and
grantors. Some donor restrictions are temporary in nature; those restrictions will be met by actions
of the Organization or by the passage of time. Other donor restrictions are perpetual in nature,
whereby the donor has stipulated the funds be maintained in perpetuity.

8-



MANCHESTER COMMUNITY HEALTH CENTER
D/B/A AMOSKEAG HEALTH

Notes to Finandal Statements

June 30,2019 and 2018

Unconditional promises to give cash and other assets are reported at fair value at the date the
promise Is received, which is then treated as cost. The gifts are reported as net assets with donor
restrictions if they are received with donor stipulations that limit the use of the donated assets.
When a donor restrlclion expires, that Is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose
restriction Is accomplished, net assets with donor restrictions are redasslfled as net assets without
donor restrictions and reported in the statements of operations and changes In net assets as net
assets released from restriction. Donor-restricted contributions whose restrlctlor^s are met in the
same year as received are reflected as contributions without donor restrictions In the
accompanying financial statements.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP generally requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabitiiies at the dale of the financial statements.
Estimates also affect the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.

income Taxes

The Organization Is a public charity under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. As a
public charily, the Organization is exempt from slate and federal income taxes on income earned
in accordance with Its tax-exempt purpose. Unrelated business income Is subject to stale and
federal Income tax. Management has evaluated the Organization's tax positions and concluded
that the Organization has no unrelated business income or uncertain lax positions that require
adjustment to the financial statements.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of demand deposits and petty cash funds.

The Organization has cash deposits in rhajor financial instilullons which exceed federal depository
Insurance limits. The Organization has not experienced losses In such accounts and management
believes the credit risk related to these deposits is minimal.

Grants and Other Receivables

Grants and other receivables are staled at the amount managennent expects to collect from
outstanding balances. All such amounts are considered collectible, including distributions from the
Eva M. I^onlembeaull Revocable Trust in the amount of $450,000 at June 30.2019.

The Organization receives a significant amount of grants from the U.S. Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS). As with all government funding, these grants are subject to reduction or
lerminatlon In future years. For the years ended June 30. 2019 and 2018. grants from DHHS
(including both direct awards and awards passed through other organizations) represented
approximately 61% and 76%. respectively, of grants, contracts and support revenue.

9-



MANCHESTER COMMUNITY HEALTH CENTER
D/B/A AMOSKEAG HEALTH

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30,2019 and 2018

Investment In Limited Liability Company

The Organization Is one of eight partners who each made a capital contribution of $500 to Primary
Health Care Partners (PHCP). The purposes of PHOP ere: (i) to engage and contract directly with
the payers of health care to Influence the design and testing of emerging payment
methodologies; (il) to achieve the three part aim of Ijelter care for Individuals, better tieailh for
populations and lower growth In expenditures in connection with both governmental find non
governmental payment systems; (ill) to undertake jdnl activities to offer access to high quality,
cost effective medical, mental health, oral health, home care and other community-based services,
based upon the medical home model of primary care delivery, that promote health and well-being
by developing and implementing effective clinical and adminislrallve systems In a manner that is
aligned with the FQHC nxKlel; and to lead coUabofalive efforts to manage costs and Improve the
quality of primary care services delivered by health centers operated throughout the state of New
Hampshire; and (Iv) to engage in any and aH lawful activities. Including wilhout Bmitalion the
negoliatlon of contracts, agreements and/or arrangements (with payers and other parties). The
Organization's investment in PHCP is reported using the equity method and the Investment
amounted to $22,589 at June 30, 2019 and 2018 and Is included in other current assets on the
accompanying balance sheets.

Prooertvand Equipment

Property and equipment acquisitions are recorded at cost. Depreciation Is provided over the
estimated useful life of each dass of depreciable asset and Is computed on the slraight-line
method.

Gifts of long-Ilved assets such as land, buildings or equipment are reported as net assets wilhout
donor restrictions, and excluded from the excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenses, unless
explicit donor stipulations specify how the donated assets must be used. Gifts of long-lived assets
with explicit restrictions that specify how the assets are to be used and gifts of cash or other assets
that must be used to acquire long-lived assets are reported as net assets with donor restrictions.
Absent explicit donor stipulations about how long those long-lived assets must be maintained,
expirations of donor restrictions are reported when the donated or acquired long-lived assets are
placed in service.'

Patient Servlca Revenue

Patient service revenue Is reported at the estimated net realizable arriounls from patients, third-
party payers, and others for services rendered, including estimated retroactive adjustments under
reimbursement agreements with third-party payers. Retroactive adjustments are acaued on an
estimated basis in the period the related services are rendered and adjusted in future periods as
final settlements are determined.
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MANCHESTER COMMUNITY HEALTH CENTER
D/B/AAMOSKEAG HEALTH

Notes to Financial Statements

Juno 30,2019 and 2016

34QB Drug Prfclna Prooram

The Orgenlzatlpn, as an FOHC, is eligible to participate In the 3408 Drug Pricing Program. The
program requires drug manufacturers to provide outpatient drugs to FQHCs and other identified
entities at a reduced price. The Organization contracts with locai pharmacies under this program.
The local pharmacies dispense drugs to eligible patients of the Organization and bill Medicare.
Medicaid managed care companies and commercial insurances on behalf of the Organlzalion.
Reimbursement received by the pharmacies is remitted to the Organization, less dispensing and
administrative fees. Gross revenue generated from the program Is included in patient service
revenue. The cost of drug replenishments and fees related to the program are Included in program
supplies and contracted services, respectively. In the accompanying statemenls of operations and
functional expenses.

Functional Expenses

The financial statements report certain categories of expenses thai are attributable to more than
one program or supporting function. Therefore, these expenses require ellocalion on a reasonable
basis that is consistently applied. The expenses that are allocated include depreciation,, interest,
and office and occupancy costs, which are allocated on a square-footage basis, as well as the
shared systems technology fees for the Organization's medical records and billing system, which
is allocated based on the percentage of patients.

Excess fPeficiencvl of Revenue Over Expenses

The statements of operations reflect the excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenses. Charges
In net assets without donor reslricllons which are excluded from the excess (deficiency) of revenue
over expenses Include conlrlbulions of long-lived assets (including assets acquired using
contributions which, by donor restriction, were to l>e used for the purposes of acquiring such
assets).

Subsequent Events

For purposes of the preparation of these financlat statements, management has considered
transactions or events occurring through November 8, 2019, the dale that the financial statements
were available to be Issued. Management has not evaluated subsequent events after that date for
Inclusion in the financial statements.

2. Availability and Liquidity of Financlat Assets

The Organization regularly monitors liquidity required to meet Us operating needs and other
contractual commUments. while also striving to optimize the investment of its available funds.

For purposes of analyzing resources available to meet general experwJitures over a 12-monih
period, the Organization considers all expenditures related to its ongoing activities and general
adminlstralion. as well as the conduct of services undertaken to support those activities to be
general expenditures.
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MANCHESTER COMMUNITY HEALTH CENTER
D/B/A AMOSKEAO HEALTH

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2019 and 2018

In addition to financial assets available to meet general expenditures over the next 12 mor^ths. the
Organization operates with a balanced budget and anticipates coiiecling sufficient revenue to
cover ger^eral expenditures not covered by donor-restricted resources.

The Organization had working capital of $2,213,561 and $600,479 at June 30. 2019 and 2018,
respectively. The Organization had average days cash and cash equivalents on hand (based on
normal expenditures) of 27 and 22 at June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

Financial assets and liquidity resources available within one year for general expenditure, such as
operating expenses and scheduled principal payments on debt, were as follows:

2fiia 2018

Cash and cash equivalents S 1,368,835 $ 1,045,492
Accounts receivatjie, net 1,890,683 1.784.891
Grants and other receivables 1.063.463 523 67;i

Financial assets available 4.322,981 3,354,056

Less net assets with donor restrictions 606.520 606.520

Financial assets available for current use

The Organization's goat is generally to have, at the minimum, the Health Resources and Services
Admlnislration (HRSA) recommended days cash on hand for operations of 30 days.

The Organization,has a $1,000,000 line of credit, as discussed in more detail in Note 5. As of June
30,2019, $550,000 remained available on the line of credit.

3. Accounts Receivable

Patient accounts receivable consisted of the following:

2fll2 2016

Patient accounts recetvable $ 3,115,302 $ 2,906.188
Contract 340B pharmacy program receivables 106.443 97.783

;  Total patient accounts receivable 3,221,745 3,003,971
Allowance for doubtful accounts f1.331.0621 f1.219.08Qi

Patient accounts receivable, net $ 1,8^0,68^ $ 1.764i6Sl
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MANCHESTER COMMUNITY HEALTH CENTER
D/B/A AMOSKEA6 HEALTH

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2019 and 2018

The Organization grants credit without coilaterai to its patients, most of whom are local reskJenls
and are insured under third-party payer agreements. Primary payers representing 10% or more of
the Organization's gross patient accounts receivable are as follows;

2019

Medicare

Medicaid

13%

26%

13%

23 %

Patient accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect from
outstanding balances. Patient accounts receivable are reduced by an allowance for uncollectible
accounts. In evaluating the colieclibility of patient accounts receivable, the Organization analyzes
its past history and identifies trends for each Individual payer. In addition, balances in excess of
one year are 100% reserved. Management regularly reviews data about revenue in evaluating the
sufficiency of the allowance for_uncollectible accounts. Amounts not collected after all reasonable
collection efforts have been exhausted are applied against the allowance for uncollectible
accounts.

A reconciliation of the allowrance for uncollectible accounts follows:

Balance, beginning of year
Provision for bad debts
Write-offs

2019 2018

Balance, end of year

$ 1,219,080 $ 1,702,394
380.456 749.930
f26S.474l f1-233.2441

S 1.331.082 S 1.219.080

The Increase In the allowance is due lo an increase in balances over 240 days old.

4. Property and EQuloment

Property and equipment consists of the following:

2019

Land

Building and leasehold improvements
Furniture and equipment

Total cost

Less accumulated depreciation

Property and equipment, net

$ . 81,000 $ 81,000
5,125,647 5.109,921
2120471

7,327,118
?.929.91S

7.152.765
2.502.418

S 4.397.203 % 4.650.347
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MANCHESTER COMMUNITY HEALTH CENTER
D/B/A AMOSKEAG HEALTH

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30,2019 and 2016

The Organization made renovations to certain buildings with Federal grant funding. In accordance
with the grant agreements, a Notice of Federal Interest (NFI) Is required to be filed In the
appropriate ofricial records of the Jurisdiction in which the property is located. The NFI is deslgr^ed
to notify any prospective buyer or creditor that the Federal Government has a financial interest In
the real property acquired under the aforementioned grant; that the properly may not be used for
any purpose Inconsistent with that authorized tyy the grant program statute and applicable
regulations; that the property may not be mortgaged or otherwise used as collateral without the
written permission of the Associate Administrator of the Office of Federal Assistance Management
(OFAM), HRSA; and (hat the property may not be sold or transferred to another party without the
wrilten permlsston of the Associate Administrator of OFAM. HRSA.

5. Line of Credit

The Organization had a $1,500,000 line of credit demand note with a local banking institution
through April 15, 2019 at which time the credit line was reduced to $1,000,000. The line of credit Is
collateralized by all a^ets. The Interest rate Is LIBOR plus 3.5% (5.91% at June 30.2019). There
was an outstanding balance on the line of credit of $450,000 and $1,185,000 at June 30, 2019 ar»d
2018, respectively.

6. LoRQ-Term Debt

Long-term debt consists of the foilowing:

2019 2018

Note payable, with a tocat bank (see terms below) $ 1,634,694 $ 1.194,313

Note payable, New Hampshire Health and Education Facilities
Authority (NHHEFA), payable In monthly Installments of $513,
including Interest at 1.00%, due July 2020, collateralized by
all business assets 6.633 12.668

Total long-term debt 1,641,327 1.207.001
Less current maturities 46.368 53.722

Long-term debt, less current maturities $ 1.153.2ZS

The Organization had a promissory note with Citizens Bank, N. A. (Citizens), collateralized by real
estate, with a balloon payment due Oecemberl, 2018 and which was rennanced In April 2019 for
$1,670,000 with NHHEFA participating In the lending for $450,000 of the note payable. Monthly
payments of $8,595, including interest fixed at 3.76%, are based on a 25 year amortization
schedule and are-to be paid through April 2026, at which time a bal'oon payment will be due for
the remaining balance, cdlaleralized by real estate.
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MANCHESTER COMMUNITY HEALTH CENTER
D/B/A AMOSKEAO HEALTH

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2019 and 2018

Scheduled principal repayments of long*term debt for the next five years and thereafter follows:

$ 46.368-2020
2021

2022

2023

2024

Thereafter

Total

42.505
43,616
45,308
46,912

1.416.618

S 1.641.327

The Organization is required to meet an annual minimum working capital and debt service
coverage debt covenants as defined in the loan agreement with Citizens, in the event of default.
Citizens has the option to terminate the agreement and Immedialoly request payment of the
outstanding debt without notice of any kind to the Organization. The Organization Is In compliance
with all loan covenants at June 30, 2019.

7. Assets With Donor Restrictions

Net assets with donor restrictions for specific purposes consisted of cash and cash equivalents

Purpose restricted:
Healthcare services

Child health services
Capital Improvements

Perpetual In nature:
Available to borrow for working capital as needed

Total

8. Patient Service Revenue

Patient service revenue follows:

Oross charges
Contract 340B pharmacy revenue

Total gross revenue

Contractual adjustments
Sliding fee scale discounts

Total patient service revenue

2019 2016

$  344,323 $ 365.301
140,226 162,045
20,613 76.632

101.358 101.358

$  606.520 $ 706.33?

2019

$18,103,265
1.553.866

2018

$17,128,053
1.343.871

19.657.131 18,469,924

(7,174.190)
M.939.4151

(6.929.944)
•6410901

$10.543.526 $ 9.898.B90
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MANCHESTER COMMUNITY HEALTH CENTER

D/B/A AMOSKEAO HEALTH

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2019 and 2018

Revenue from MedicakJ accounted for approximately 53% and 51 Vo of the Organization's gross
patient service revenue for the years ended June 30. 2019 and 2018, respectively. No other
irvJIvidual payer represented more than 10% of (he Organization's gross patient service revenue.

Laws and regulations governing the Medicare. Medicaid and 340B programs are complex and
subject to interpretation. The Organization believes that it is In compliance with aP laws and
regulations. Compliance wlh such laws and regulations can be subject to future government
review and interpretation, as well as signiricant regulatory action including fines, penalties and
exclusion from the Medicare. Medicaid and 3408. Differences between amounts previously
estimated and amounts subsequently determined to be recoverable or payable are included in
pallent service revenue in the year that such amounts become known.

A summary of the payment arrangements with major third-party payers follows;

Medicare

The Organization Is reimbursed for the medical care of qualified patients on a prospective basis,
with retroactive settlements related to vaccine costs only. The prospective payment Is based on a
geographically-adjusted rate determined by Federal guidelines. Overall, reimbursement is subject
to a maximum allowable rate per visit. The Organization's Medicare cost reports have been
audited by the Medicare administrative contractor through June 30,2018.

Medicaid and Other Pavers

The Organization also has entered into payment agreements with Medicaid and certain
commercial Insurance carriers, health maintenance organizations and preferred provider
organizations. The basis for payment to the Organization under these agreements Includes
prospectively-determined rales per visit and contractuaily obligated payment rates which may be
less than the Organization's public fee schedule.

Charity Care

The Organization provides care to patients who meet cerlain criteria under Its sliding fee discount
policy without charge or at amounts less than its established rales. Because the Organization does
not pursue oolleclion of amounts determined to qualify as charity care, they are not reported as net
patient service revenue. The Organization estimates the costs associated with providing charily
care by calculating the ratio of total cost to total charges, and then multiplying that ratio by the
gross ur^compensated charges associated with providing care to patients eligible for free care. The
estimated cost of providing services to patients under the Organization sliding fee discount policy
anK>unted to $2,217,386 and $1,882,644 for the years ended June 30. 2019 and 2018,
respectively. The Organization is able to provide these services with a component of funds
received through local community support and federal and state grants.
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MANCHESTER COMMUNITY HEALTH CENTER

D/B/A AM0SKEA6 HEALTH

Notes to Financial Statements

Juno 30, 2019 and 2018

9. Retirement Plan .

The Organization has a defined contribution plan under Internal Revenue Code Section 403(b) that
covers substantially all employees. The Organization contributed $309,981 and $338,779 for the
years ended June 30,2019 and 2018, respectively.

10. Medical Malpractice Insurance

The Organization is protected from medical malpractice risk as an FQHC under the Federal Tort
Claims Act (FTCA). The Organization has additional.medlcal malpractice Insurance, on a claims-
made basis, for coverage oulside the scope of the protection of the FTCA. As of the year ended
June 30, 2019, there were no known malpractice claims outstanding which, In the opinion of
management, v^il be settled for amounts in excess of both FTCA and additional medical
malpractice insurance coverage, nor are there any unasserted claims or Incidents which require
loss accrual. The Organizalion intends to renew the addilionai medical malpractice insurance
coverage on a claims-made basis and anticipates that such coverage will t>e available.

11. Lease Commitments

The Organization leases office space and certain other office equipment under noncancelable
operating leases. Future minimum lease payments under these leases are;

2020 $ 172.099
2021 139,989
2022 110,803
2023 78,057
2024 52x525

Total $ 5gQ.513

Rent expenses amounted to $199,895 and $241,375 for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018,
respectively.
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AM05KEAG HEALTH BOARD OF DIRECTORS AS OF 03/02/2020

Catherine Marsellos Paralegal Consumer

Mohammad "Saleem"

Yusuf

Professor of IT/Software

Development

Consumer

David Crespo Field Consultant Consumer

Angella Chen-Shadeed Caregiver Consumer

Dennis,"Danny"

Ca risen

Landlord Consumer

Maria Mariano Retired Consumer

Phillip Adams Carpenter Consumer

David Hildenbrand COO Consumer

Kathleen Davidson Atty Non-Consumer

Richard Elwell Consultant Non-Consumer

Dawn McKinney Policy Director Non-Consumer.

Thomas Lavoie Insurance Broker Non-Consumer

Christian Scott Director of Talent Acquisition Non-Consumer

MadhabGurung Direct Support Professional Consumer

Debra (Debbie)

Manning

Health Care Consultant

Software

Consumer



MNETC. CLARK

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE:

Amoskeag Health, Manchester, NH
Director, Special Medical Programs 2003 to Present

•  Management of four programs for children with special health care needs. Including the CNid
Development Olnlc, Neuromolor Clinic, Complex Care Network, Health Care Coordination, and
Nutrition programs.

•  Member of MCHC Management Team
•  Responsible for contract management and program compliance with state and federal mandates.
•  Supervise 16 MCHC employees and 24 contractors

Regional Program Coordinator. Ch'rfd Development Unit October 1987 to Present
•  Manage regional Chijd Development Program including clinical assessment, community relations,

family support, advocacy, all organizational functions of mult! discipllnarv team (MC/s, PhD's,
support staff).

•  Develop yearly clinical activities, collaborative initiatives and long-range goals.
•  Coordinated Child Development'Services Consortium - joint effort by CHS, Area Agency and Early

IntervMtlon Program at Easter Seats.
•  Participated in agency-wide time study for billing and Quality Assurance purposes/UNH Health

policy and Management Personnel.

•  Coordinated Health Care Transition Grant for three-year A-D/HD Clinic at Child Health Services.

Special Medical Services Bureau, NH Dept of Health and Human Services, Concord, NH
Intake Coordinator (Contractor) 1997-1999

•  Perform Initial intake assessment and develop appropriate service plan for new SMS8 applicants
•  Triage referrals, collaborate with community health and human service providers to assure

quality care for children 0-18 years old.

SSI Needs Assessments (Coniractof) 1995-1997

»  Perform Intake/needs assessments for children whose families have applied for SSI benefits and
refer for services as appropriate In compliance with Federal Social Security regulations.

Regional Oinic Coordinator-Genetics Services Program 199S-1998
•  Provided community-based coordination as part of Genetic outreach program collaboratlvely

provided by Children's Hospital at Dartnxnith and Special Medical Services Bureau.
•  Inta'ke assessment, referral and information to ail families scheduled.

•  Obtained medical history, pedigree and provided family support at clinic.

Chfld Health Services

Family Support Worker 1984 -1987

•  Part of a multl-dlsclplinary pedlatric team providing clinical and social services within the agency
setting, home visits, coordination of community resources

New Hampshire Catholic Charities, Inc. Manchester and Keene, NH
Social Worker 1979 -1983

Responsible for the delivery of clinical, social and parish outreach services.



Cooperttive Extenston Services, MlUord. NH
Program Assistant 1978-1979
Responsible for planning and Implementing volunteer recruitment programs for Hillsborough County-

Main Street House, Noank, CT

Assistant Director 1976-1977

A group home for teenage girls, ages 14 though 18.

EOUCATIONAIBACKOROUNO:

Graduate course work {r> Public Health, University of NH, Manchester 2000- 2002

Health Administration, New Hampshire CoUege, Manchester, NH 1994-1995
Graduate courses In counseling at Connecticut College. New London, CT and 1976-1980
University of New Hampshire, Durham, NH,
BSW, Providence College, Providence, R.I. 1975

Professional Development: )
Certificate in Community Health leadership (Bi-State Primary Care Association) 2010

Autism Spectrum Disorder, Training Certification In Autism Diagnostic Observation Scale, ADHD, Family
Support. Genetics, Spectrum of Developmental Disabiliiles at Johns Hopkins University (1990 and 2013)
CHAD Child Maltreatment Conferences, ACE/Trauma Informed Interventions, Zero to Three, Boston
Medical Center Developmental Pediatrics

References available upon request.



MANCHESTER COMMUNITY HEALTH CENTER
Complex Care Network

04/01/20-06/30/20

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from

this Contract

Amount Paid from

this Contract

Janet Clark Director ofSMP SI9.900 -  15.00% $2,985



MANCHESTER COMMUNITY HEALTH CENTER
Complex Care NetNvork

07/01/20-06/30/21

Personnei

Name JobTille

Janet Clark Director of SMP

Salary

$80.449

% Paid from

this Contract

15.00%

Amount Paid from

this Contract

$12.067



MANCHESTER COMMUNITY HEALTH CENTER
Complex Core Nctwoi'k

07/01/21.03/31/22

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from

this Contract

Amount Paid from

this Contract

Janet Clark Director of SMP S6i.4S3 15.00% $9,222
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Jeffrey A. Meyers
Commissioner

Christine Santanicllo
Director

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

OFFICE OF MEDICAID SERVICES

Bureau of Developmental Services

105 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301
603-271-5023 1-800-852-3345 Ext. 5034

Fax: 603-271-5166 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.oh.gov

March 8, 2018

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council
State House
Concord, New Harnpshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Office of Medlcaid Services.
Bureau of Developmental Services, to enter into an agreement with Manchester Community
Health Center (Vendor #157247-8001), 145 Hollis St. Manchester. NH 03110. to provide
neuromotor and complex care services for children with special health care needs in an
amount not to exceed $880,000. effective April 1, 2018, or upon Governor and Executive
Council approval, whichever is later, through March 31, 2020. 30% Federal Funds, 70%
General Funds

Funds are available in the following account for State Fiscal Year 2018 and State Fiscal
Year 2019, and are anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Year 2020, with authority to
adjust encumbrances between State Fiscal Years without further approval from the Governor
and Executive Council through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.
05-95-90-930010-51910000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVS, HHS; DEVELOPMENTAL SERVICES, DIVISION OF DEVELOPMENTAL
SERVICES, SPECIAL MEDICAL SERVICES

Fiscal
Year

Class/Account Class Title Job Number Total Amount

2018 561-500911 Specialty Clinics 93001000 $ 110,000

2019 561-500911 Specialty Clinics 93001000 $ 440.000

2020 561-500911 Specialty Clinics 93001000 $ 330,000
Total $ 880,000

EXPLANATION
The purpose of this request is to provide medical services for children in New

Hampshire who have complex medical needs and neuromotor conditions. The Neuromotor
and Complex Care Network consists of interdisciplinary teams of health care professionals



His Excellency Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Page 2 of 3

who deliver specialized medical services to children with neuromotor and complex health
conditions.

Through the Neuromotor and Complex Care Network, health care professionals work to
integrate new services, coordinate service delivery, and improve the linkages between health
care providers, educational providers, and community service agencies. The coordination of
care eliminates duplication of services and assures that children in need of specialized
medical services receive timely and appropriate care.

A Request for Proposals was posted on the Department's website from April 3, 2017
through June 13, 2017. The Department received one (1) proposal, which was evaluated by
topic area experts within the Department. Manchester Community Health Center was selected
as the winning vendor. The Summary Score Sheet is attached.

Manchester Community Health Center will provide a single point of access to services
for comprehensive specialty consultation that draws upon community resources for the
provision of those services. The Contractor will identify developmental pediatricians, specialty
care providers, community-based psychologists, allied health providers, special education
experts and local coordinators to participate as members of interdisciplinary teams, as needed,
to effectively provide assessment and consultation services to families.

Additionally, the Contractor will provide interdisciplinary clinic services that are
scheduled within a routine frequency and provide general neuromotor and complex care
education and training to health care providers, school professionals and caregivers. The
Contractor's care coordinator will provide follow-up monitoring and coordination of services for
the children and their families.

As referenced in the Request for Proposals and in Exhibit C-1, Revisions to General
Provisions, this agreement includes the option for the Department to renew contract services
for up to two (2) additional year{s), contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available
funding, agreement of the parties and approval of the Governor and Executive Council.

Should Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, the Neuromotor and
Complex Care Network may not be sustained, and children with neuromotor conditions and
complex medical needs may not receive needed specialty medical services, coordinated
treatment, and continuity of care.

Area served; Statewide.

Source of Funds: 30% Federal Funds from US Health and Human Services,
Health Resources and Services Administration, Title V Block Grant FAIN #B04MC29353, and
70% General Funds.
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In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, additional
General Funds will not be requested to support this program.

spectfully submitted,

Christine Santaniello

Director

Approved by:

Feffrey A. Meyers
Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services' Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.
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Summary Scoring Sheet
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Program
RFP Name

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

Bidder Name

IVIanchester Community Health Center

RFP.2018-BDS-05-NEURO

RFP Number

Pass/Fail

Maximum
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Actual

Points

325 258

Reviewer Names

1. TECHNICAL:

2
Alicia L'esperance

3.
Kerry Wiley

4
Dierdre Dunn

5.

6.

7.

COST;

Tanja Milic

Paula Bundy



KORM NUMBER P-37 (version 5/8/15)

Subject: Neuromotor and Complex Care Program (RPP-20I8-BDS-05-NEURO)

Notice: This agreement and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT

The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

I. IDENTIFICATION.

I.I State Agency Name
NH Department of Health and Human Services

1.3 Contractor Name

Manchester Communit>' Health Center

1.2 State Agency Address
129 Pleasant Street

Concord. NH 03301-3857

1.4 Contractor Address

145 Hollis St.

Manchester. NH 03101

1.5 Contractor Phone

Number

603-626-9500

1.6 Account Number

05-095-093-930010-5191

0000-561-500911

1.7 Completion Date

March 31.2020

1.8 Price Limitation

$ 880.000

1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency
E. Maria Reinemann, Esq.
Director of Contracts and Procurement

1.10 Slate Agency Telephone Number
603-271-9330

1.11 Contractor Signature 1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

Kris McCracken President/CEO

1.13 Acknowfedgement: State of New Hampshire County of Hillsborough

On Mof before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified in block 1.12, or satisfactorily
proven to be the person whose name is signed in block 1.11. and acknowIedge^i|^^^t^s/he executed this document in the capacity
indicated in block 1.12. k-

.13.1 Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

[Seal]

U C I V/J I

■i'- ^

1.13.2 Name and Title of Notar>' or Justice of the Peace

^^s|ile^Tumer, Notary f^li
1. 15 .^flwfliwrf^itle of State Agency Sisnator>1.14 /Statfe/kgency S^grptur

/apf>^:
'cabte^ '

a/?Date

LliwA^iioval ̂  the C»epanment of Adminisfratiof, Di^sion of Personnel (ifappUcabld)
Director. On:By:

. 17 Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) (if applicable)

^AA/^ \ .. ... ^ 7/IZ-//0
1.18 Approval by the Governor^B<i|E,xecutiv^ (founcil applicable)

By: / / On:
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2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO

BE PERFORMED. The State of New Hampshire, acting
through the agency identified in block 1.1 ("State"), engages
contractor identified in block 1.3 ("Contractor") to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which is Incorporated herein by reference
("Services").

5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrar)', and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.

3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to Che approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the Slate of New Hampshire, if
applicable, this Agreement, and all obligations of the parlies
hereunder, shall become effective on the date the Governor

and Executive Council approve this Agreement as indicated in
block 1.18, unless no such approval is required, in which case

the Agreement shall become effective on the date the
Agreement is signed by the Stale Agency as shown in block
1.14 ("Effective Date").

3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Dale shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder. are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of

appropriated foinds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, if ever, and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The State
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that

Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. contract PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/

PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment are identified and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price.
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6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS

AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,

including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. This may include the requirement to utilize auxiliary
aids and services to ensure that persons with communication
disabilities, including vision, hearing and sp>eech, can
communicate with, receive information from, and convey
information to the Contractor. In addition, the Contractor

shall comply with all applicable copyright laws.
6.2 During the term of this Agreement. thc'Contracior shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
afilrmative action to prevent such discrimination.
6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 ("Equal
Employment Opportunity"), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United States Department of Labor (41
C.F.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the State of New Hampshire or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
permit the State or United Slates access to any of the
Contractor's books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the SerN'ices to hire, any person who is a State
employee or official, who is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance of this

>-
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Agreement. This provision shall survive termination of this
Agreement.

7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the State's representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting Officer's decision shall be final for the State.

8 EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder

("Event of Default");
8.1.1 failure to perform the Ser\'ices satisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may take any one, or more, or all. of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and ifthe Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the dale of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default

shall never be paid to the Contractor;
8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the Stale may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or

8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/

PRESERVATION.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to. all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.

9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.
9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91 -A or other e.visting law. Disclosure of data
requires prior written approval of the State.
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to. TERMINATION. In the event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Ser\'ices. the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of
termination, a report ("Termination Report") describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination
Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in the attached EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In

the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers' compensation
or other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice and
consent of the State. None of the Services shall be

subcontracted by the Contractor without the prior written
notice and consent of the Slate.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hold haimless the Stale, its officers and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
Stale, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out oO the acts or omissions of the
•Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the

sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance;

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts

. of not less than $ 1 .OOO.OOOper occurrence and $2,000,000
aggregate ; and
14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the propert\'.
14.2 The policies described In subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New
Hampshire.
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14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate{s)

of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of
insurance for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than thirty (30) days prior to the expiration
date of each of the insurance policies. The certificate(s) of
insurance and any renewals thereof shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. Each ccrtificate(s) of
insurance shall contain a clause requiring the insurer to
provide the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, no less than thirty (30) days prior written
notice of cancellation or modification of the policy.

15. WORKERS'COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A
("Workers' Compensaiion ").
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the

requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A. Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers' Compensation in \
connection with activities which the person proposes to'
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall
furnish the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, proof of Workers' Compensation in the
manner described in N.H. RSA chapter 281-A and any
applicable renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference.-The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers' Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable Slate of New Hampshire Workers'
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the Stale to
enforce any provisions hereof after any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Office addressed to the parlies at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

IS. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only affer approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire unless no

such approval is required under the circumstances pursuant to
State law, rule or policy.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.

This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the

laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement
is the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties ancl this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement •

are for reference purposes only, and the words contained
therein shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify' or
aid in the interpretation, construction or meaning of the
provisions of this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set
forth in the attached EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by
reference.'

23. SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provisions of
this Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes ail prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Neuromotor and Complex Care Program

Exhibit A

Scope of Services

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services
1.1. The Contractor will submit a detailed description of the language assistance

services theywiii provide to persons with limited English proficiency to ensure
meaningful access to their programs and/or services within ten (10) days of the
contract effective date.

1.2. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New
Hampshire General Court or federal or state court orders may have an impact on
the Services described herein, the State Agency has the right to modify Service
priorities and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve
compliance therewith.

1.3. The Contractor shall provide services under this Contract to children and youth,
from birth to age twenty-one (21), with Neuromotor conditions and Complex Care
needs, who reside in New Hampshire, with an emphasis on services for
children/families who;

1.3.1. Do not have timely access to comprehensive specialty consultation
services from other sou rces.

1.3.2. Do not have health insurance.

1.3.3. Have conditions requiring a comprehensive team approach for adequate
access to services.

1.3.4. Are medically fragile or have complex health care needs.

2. Scope of Services

2.1. The Contractor shall identify developmental pediatrician(s). specialty care
providers, community-based psychologists, allied health providers, special
education experts, and local coordinators, to participate as members of
interdisciplinary teams, as needed to effectively provide assessment and
consultation services, and participate as part of interdisciplinary clinics.

2.2. The Contractor shall establish and maintain a Neuromotor and Complex Care
Network (NCCN), to deliver services to Children with Special Healthcare Needs
(CSHCN).

2.3. The Contractor shall ensure that all CSHCN enrolled in the NCCN Program meet
the following criteria:

2.3.1. Are provided coordinated, ongoing, and comprehensive care within a
Medical Home.

2.3.2. Have access to Community-Based services that are organized in such a
way that CSHCN and their families can use them easily.

2.3.3. Receive all services necessary to be able to work and live independently
as adults before they reach the age of twenty-one (21).

Manchester Community Health Center Exhibit A Contractor initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Neuromotor and Complex Care Program

Exhibit A

2.4. The Contractor shall provide Interdisciplinary clinics scheduled at intervals and
locations as agreed to by the Department which shall include, but are not limited to:

2.4.1. Neuromotor clinics that provide a continuity of care.

2.4.2. Complex Care Clinics to :

2.4.2.1. Provide point in time evaluations.

2.4.2.2. Address specific needs identified at the time of intake.

2.4.2.3. Follow up on recommendations from interdisciplinary teams.

2.4.3. Interdisciplinary specialty consultation, which is specific to each child,
which shall include, but are not limited to:

2.4.3.1. Coordinate treatment l^etween professional service providers.

2.4.3.2. Share expert consultation.

2.4.3.3. Communicate treatment recommendations to:

2.4.3.3.1. Health care providers.

2.4.3.3.2. School support teams.

2.4.3.3.3. Caregivers.

2.4.3.4. Provide Neuromotor and Complex Care education and training
to:

2.4.3.4.1. Health care providers.

2.4.3.4.2. School support teams.

2.4.3.4.3. Caregivers.

2.4.4. Develop an individual family-centered plan of care for each CSHCN who
receives services from the NCCN . including, but not limited to:

2.4.4.1. Follow-up visits.

2.4.4.2. Monitor requirements.

2.4.4.3. Reassessment plan.

2.4.4.4. Specific type of services required, including, but not limited to:

2.4.4.4.1. Type of service.

2.4.4.4.2. Frequency of service.

2.5. The Contractor shall direct and oversee Clinic Coordinators and interdisciplinary
teams in all services provided, which shall include, but are not limited to:

2.5.1. Intake.

2.5.2. Triage.

2.5.3. Consultation.

2.5.4. Assessment Evaluations.

2.5.5. Diagnostic Evaluations.

Manchester Community Health Center Exhibit a Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Neuromotor and Complex Care Program

Exhibit A

2.5.6. Development of individual plans.

3. Staffing

3.1. The Contractor shall establish and maintain program personnel policies and
procedures. These policies include, but are not limited to:

3.1.1. Selection and dismissal of staff, volunteers and others.

3.1.2. Deliver or coordinate services under the provider's direction.

3.1.3. Procedures for supporting students/interns interested in working with
CSHGN.

3.1.4. Procedures for verifying staff, volunteer and student trainee/intern
qualifications.

3.1.5. Program and personnel policies and procedures will be accessible and
available to all agency staff and Special Medical Services.

3.2. The Contractor shall employ Clinic/Care Coordinators whose qualifications include,
but are not limited to:

' 3.2.1. Registered Nurse with a Master's or Bachelor's degree and two (2) years
of experience in care coordination or working within community programs
serving CYSHCN or,

3.2.2. Registered Nurse with an Associate's degree in nursing^and four (4)
years of experience in care coordination or working within community
programs serving CYSHCN or,

3.2.3. Licensed Master Social Worker (LMSW) and one (1) year of experience
in care coordination or with community programs serving CYSHCN or,

3.2.4. Licensed Social Worker with a Bachelor's degree and two years of
experience in care coordination or with community programs serving
CYSHCN.

3.3. The Contractor shall employ one (1) or more Orthopedic Specialists whose
qualifications include, but are not limited to:

3.3.1. Completed residency or fellowship training in orthopedics, with a
particular focus on pediatrics and rehabilitative medicine.

3.3.2. Knowledge of a wide range of neuromotor problems in children.

3.3.3. Skill in physical assessment and interpretation of diagnostic neuromotor
problems.

3.3.4. Ten years' experience in orthopedics, including but not limited to five
years' experience serving a pediatric population within a family or
developmental context.

3.3.5. Ability to work with children and other health professionals within a
multidisciplinary framework.

3.3.6. Ability to travel within the State on assignment.

Manchester Community Health Center Exhibit A Contractor Initials

RFP-2018-BDS-05-NEURO Page 3 of 6 Date

it'als /

D=.e SItF



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Neuromotor and Complex Care Program

Exhibit A

3.4. The Contractor shall employ two (2) or more Developmental Pediatricians whose
qualifications include, but are not limited to:

3.4.1. Licensed by the State of New Hampshire, Board of Registration in
Medicine.

3.4.2. Have completed fellowship training in child development, developmental
disabilities, rehabilitative medicine, or have equivalent training and
experience.

3.4.3. Have at least five (5) years of experience working with families who have
children with special health care needs in a clinical setting.

3.4.4. Have demonstrated strong interpersonal skills in communication with
primary care physicians, local early intervention and education agencies,
allied health professionals, and families.

3.4.5. Able to work with children and other health professionals within an
interdisciplinary framework.

3.4.6. Familiarity with standardized cognitive assessments and their applicability
to children with specific disabilities.

3.5. The Contractor shall employ two (2) or more Psychologists whose qualifications
include, but are not limited to:

3.5.1. Licensed by the New Hampshire Board of Examiners of Psychologists as
a certified psychologist.

3.5.2. Possess a Doctorate degree from a recognized college or university with
a major emphasis in child psychology.

3.5.3. Have knowledge of the principles and practices of developmental and
child psychology that are required for assessment and treatment of
children and youth with special health care needs. This includes, but is
not limited to:

3.5.3.1. Skill in behavioral observation.

3.5.3.2. Psychological testing (cognitive functioning).

3.5.3.3. Scoring and interpretation.

3.5.3.4. Consultation and counseling.

3.5.4. Five (5) years of experience in child psychology, including no less than
three (3) years of experience serving CSHCN and their families.

3.5.5. Demonstrated ability to work with other health professionals within an
interdisciplinary framework.

3.5.6. Ability to work under the leadership of and take clinical direction from the
Developmental Pediatrician

3.6. The Contractor shall employ Community-Based Pediatric Physical Therapists
whose qualifications include, but are not limited to:

3.6.1. Licensed by the New Hampshire Office of Professional Licensure and
Certification, Physical Therapy Governing Board. ^

Manchester Community Health Center Exhibit A Contractor Initials ̂
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Neuromotor and Complex Care Program

Exhibit A

3.6.2. Completed fellowship or residency training in pediatric physical therapy or
have equivalent training and experience.

3.6.3. , Demonstrated ability to work with other health professionals within an
interdisciplinary framework.

3.6.4. Ability to work under the leadership of and take clinical direction from the
Developmental Pediatrician and/or Pediatric Orthopedist.

3.7. The Contractor shall employ professionals and paraprofessionals to assist Care
Coordinators in providing services. The professionals and paraprofessionals may
include, but are not limited to, specialty physicians, therapists, family support
workers, community aides, and experienced parents. Paraprofessionals are to
receive appropriate training and must work in collaboration with and under the
supervision of professional staff.

3.8. The Contractor shall recruit for positions in the event of any vacancy. The
Department will maintain final approval in the selection process.

3.9. The Contractor shall notify the Department in writing at least one (1) week prior to
any new ernployee's start date, when a new coordinator or provider is hired to work
in the program. Information submitted with this notification shall include;

3.9.1. Full name with middle initial and official start date.

3.9.2. The work phone number and email.

3.9.3. Resume.

3.10. The Contractor shall ensure staff receiving funds under this Contract attends
required pertinent technical assistance sessions or progress reviews sponsored by
the Department.

4. Reporting

4.1. The Contractor shall provide monthly reports, in a Department approved format,
including, but not limited to:

4.1.1. The unduplicated nunnber, demographic characteristics, and insurance
status of each client receiving services.

4.1.2. A narrative describing any problems, obstacles, or hindrances
experienced, including a plan to address the identified problems,
obstacles, or hindrances.

4.1.3. Assessment of each client, including! but not limited to:

4.1.3.1. Individual goals.

4.1.3.2. Referrals.

4.1.3.3. Number of encounters.

4.1.3.4. Need for financial support.

4.1.3.5. Progress notes.

4.2. The Contractor shall provide annual reports, in a format provided by the
Department, including, but not limited to: - ^

Manchester Community Health Center Exhibit A Contractor Initial
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4.2.1. Quality assurance activities.

4.2.2. Future plans, including future goals.

4.2.3. Progress toward program objectives.

4.2.4. Statistical measures to evaluate:

4.2.4.1. Successful outcomes.

4.2.4.2. Progress towards program goals.

4.2.4.3. Program effectiveness.

4.3. The Contractor shall develop and distribute annual consumer satisfaction surveys
to families and primary care providers.

4.4. The Contractor shall conduct chart audits and case reviews on an annual basis.

4.5. The Contractor shall develop and submit to the Department an annual report, to
include a corrective action plan for any performance measure not achieved, as
referenced in Section 5.

5. Performance Measures

5.1. The Contractor shall ensure that following performance indicators are annually
achieved and monitored monthly to measure the effectiveness of the agreement:

5.1.1. 100% of parents or guardians of CSHCN who receive services from
NCCN providers are given a Family Satisfaction Survey to complete.

5.1.2. 100% of referrals to NCCN are recorded and reported monthly.

5.1.3. 100% of records from each clinic visit and/or consultation with NCCN

service provider will be shared with the Medical Home of the CSHCN.

5.1.4. 100% of all intake assessments, includes, but not be limited to:

5.1.4.1. Medical needs.

5.1.4.2. Developmental needs.

5.1.4.3. Equipment needs.

6. Deliverables

6.1. The Contractor shall provide a minimum of ten (10) Complex Care Consultation
Clinics in the Central and/or Southern part of New Hampshire, and deliver services
to no less than thirty (30) children.

6.2. The Contractor shall provide a minimum of four (4) Complex Care Consultation
Clinics in the North Country area of New Hampshire, and deliver services to no
less than twelve (12) children.

6.3. The Contractor shall provide a minimum of twenty (20) neuromotor clinics,

6.4. The Contractor shall meet with SMS quarterly to evaluate progress and review
service metrics.

t-
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Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. The State shall pay the contractor an amount not to exceed the Form P-37, General Provisions,
Block 1.8, Price Limitation for the services provided by the Contractor pursuant to Exhibit A, Scope of
Services.

2. This contract is funded with funds from U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Maternal
and Child Health Services Title V Block Grant, CFDA #93.994.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide the services in Exhibit A, Scope of Services in compliance with
funding requirements. Failure to meet the scope of services may jeopardize the funded contractor's
current and/or future funding.

4. Payment for said services shall be made monthly as follows:

4.1. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in the
fulfillment of this agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved line item as shown
in Exhibit B-1, Exhibit B-2 and Exhibit B-3.

4.2. The Contractor shall submit an invoice in a form satisfactory to the State by the twentieth
(20'^) working day of each month, which identifies and requests reimbursement for authorized
expenses incurred in the prior month. The invoice must t>e completed, signed, dated and
returned to the Department in order to initiate payment.

4.3. The final invoice shall be due to the State no later than forty (40) days after the contract Form
P-37, Block 1.7 Completion Date.

4.4. In lieu of hard copies, all invoices may be assigned an electronic signature and emailed to
Robin.Hlobeczy@dhhs.nh.gov, or invoices may be mailed to:

Department of Health and Human Services
Special Medical Services Section
129 Pleasant Street, Thayer Building
Concord. NH 03301

4.5. Payments may be withheld pending receipt of required reports or documentation as identified
In Exhibit A, Scope of Services and in this Exhibit B.

5. The Contractor shall keep detailed records of their activities related to Department of Health and
Human Services'-funded programs and services.

6. Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the General Provisions P-37, changes limited to adjusting amounts
between budget line items, related items, amendments of related budget exhibits within the price
limitation, and to adjusting encumbrances between State Fiscal Years, may be made by written
agreement of both parties and may be made without obtaining approval of the Governor and
Executive Council.

Manchester Community Health Center Exhibit B Contractor initials
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Exhibit B -1

Nffw H«mpahfre Depa/tmertt of Health and Human Services

BMdtfrPrograni Name: Mancheuer Community Healtti Center

Budget Request tor: Hcuromoiorand Complex Care Program |RFP-2eia-BOS4S-NEUR0)
IHtmiclRfPI

Budget Period: 4nn8-«/30ltS

LaMltem

_Tc(al_Pro^m^o^
Mksct

Rxsd

ContfKtor Bharo / Hatch

TetH

,Pgnde^j^H>^jonC^cl_g>af^

]. Total SaiaryAVaoee

2 Emctovee Benerm

3 ConsuHana

a. EoiiomenL

Rental

Repae ana Maeitenance

5 Scpoees:

PtfOwea'OeofeOBtron

Lap

PtiamiacY

onice

Occigancy

6 CiTBit Expenses

<3213 00

6.211.00

675 00

4321300

6211 OO

22.662 00

43.213 OO

e.211.00

22.662 00

Telepncne

Posiaoe

SuOscnpaons

20000

I Leoal

Board Expenses

10. MarKeiirwCommunicattons

11 SiHfEOucatienandTraorxa

12. Smicortraas/AOfeemerxs

13. Otner iioedltedatalismaodwofyl:
PeOatric OrSiooeast-Ail Cleecs

Oevelcofrienial Peoainoan
4.662 00

InlefDfeier Services

Neurornqor Netwert Metunos

Trerei t Maeaoe tcr Oevctoomentai Pedtetrtdan

Medical Transcraaoo lor Neucomaor Carecs

Oftce EqucmerWiriofmatcn TedncteoY

Space Alocaiton

Aomtvaerwive Fee

TOTAL

Indirect As A Percent ol Direct

12.044 00

33300

£00 00

223 00 223 00

2.42SOO 2^26.00
12 727 00 12.727.00

ays 3.00 H.HXOO 110,4453)0 OO

242500

1266600

12,044 00

33300

£00 00

i5,ni.co iio.ceftoo I
1690%

Mancnesier CommiaMy Heattn Center

RfP.20i8-BOS-05-NEUftO
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Exhibits-2

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Biedtrrprograni Nania; MenchMtcr Community HaiRh Center

Buflget Requeet (or Neuromotor end Complex Cere Program {RFP-201S-BD$-OS-NEURO).

Budget Period: 7MH8-VWH9

Contractor Shera / Hatch Ftirtded by DWKS co»<jacl ehare

Unelteoi

Dtiaet

kKramontal

Total Total

Rzad

CMract

toeramaRtal

indlract

FUad

1. Torei Saiary/Waow I7<.7a6 00

2. Emoiovee Benetiis 33,210.00

3. ConsuHarwt 4932 68 05100

4. Eoucmem

Rerui

Recaif and Mainienanco

PurenataiDepreciation

S Supplies:

Eoucasona

Ptiarmaev

6. Travel

7. OccicancY

8. Curreni Experwee

Telaonone

Poataoe

Subacnoiiont

Auat and legal

insurance

Board Expenaes

9. Soltware

10. MariieiinoComnwjrecaiions

11. Start Educaiien and Traif»nq

12 SubcottractVAqreemertt

13. Odier (jpedftcdwais mandatory)

Pediatnc Onnooediai-An Chntcs

Devaoomenial Pediancian 49.139.00

mterpreiar Services
Neuromolof Netrvort MegnpS

Travel a MUeaae for Developmental Peaaaxian

Medical Trarwgipllon (or Neuromoicr Chnics

Otfica EQupmem/lteormaiion TecnnclooY 2000 00 2.00000

Space Alocaton

Adminiairaiive Pee 58.722.00 785 00 57.937.00

TOTAL 384.670.00 81.147.00 7 4,832.00 6.717.00 378.838.00 60,38200 440,800.00 1

Indirect Aa A Percent of Direct

Mwxtiesier CommrfWY Healtti Center

HFP-20l8-BOS-05-NeuRO

Contraciora Inaw
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Exhibit B - 3

New Hampshire Department of Health ar>d Human Services

BlMtrrProgram N«m*: Mnchnlar Community HMlth Ccnttr

Budeel Request for: Neuromotor end Complez Cere Progrem (RFP-201S-6DS-O6-NEUROI
of fffPi

BudQtt Period:

CerMractor Stwf* r aWeti Futtded Py OHHS cordrect iftfe

Mk

UnetlMn

Indirect

Filed

fciJfecl

Ffaad

Totri ect

Rxed

1  Total SafarY/Waoea 134693 00 134.693.00 S

2. Emptovee BenefiB 25 592.00 S

3 Corauliann

4. Eomomeni:

Renal

Repair ano Maintenance

PurOweiDeoreawicn

5. Sj>d*i>»:

EdUMttOfMl

PtwmacY

1.975 00 1975 00

6 Travel

7. Occupancy

a Curenl ExoensM

Teiephene

PosiaoB

Siei«qipt»ons
Audi and Legal

Boara Ezpenaea

9. Sottware

10 MarxeiinoX^cmmunicanorts

IV Slitt Educatjcn and TrainnQ

12. SoOcottreqsrAoreemens

13. Other (rpebflc deteii mandatory):

Peoatric Onhooediu-Aii an«c»

Oeveloomenial Pediainoan 37^59300 37 59300

Interpreter Services

Neuromotor NeNrorV Meitnoe 1500 00

Trevel 6 Mileaoe lor Developmena Pedatridan 747.00

Meocal Trarwcripiicn lor Neuromoier Ciavcs

Office EouiomenWitormetion TecPnoloQv

Space Aiocaien 242500

Adminiairairve Fee

TOTAL 2S3.9W.00 4S.7eS.CO 9.271.00 10,741 294.729.00 IT 49.272.00 330.000.00 \

Indirect Ae A Percent of Direct

Mancnesier Community HeWh Center
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Contractors Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible
individuals and, in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows:

1. Compliance with Federal and State Laws: If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility
of individuals such eligibility determination shall be made in accordance with applicable federal and
state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

2. Time and Manner of Determination: Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by
the Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by
the Department.

(

3. Documentation: In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor
shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder, which file shall include all
information necessary to support an eligibility determination and such other information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with all forms and documentation
regarding eligltxiity determinations that the Department may request or require.

4. Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder, as well as
individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out
an application form and that each applicant or re-applicant shall be informed of his/her right to a fair
hearing in accordance with Department regulations.

5. Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the State in order to influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this
Contract. The State may terminate this Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement if It is
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sulj-Contractor.

6. Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or in any
other document, contract or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties
hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for
any purpose or for any services provided to any individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract
and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the Contractor for any services provided
prior to the date on which the individual applies for services or (except as otherwise provided by the
federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual is eligible for such services.

7. Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing
herein contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate
which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such service, or at a
rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals or other third party
funders for such service. If at any time during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Final
Expenditure Report hereunder, the Department shall determine that the Contractor'has used
payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment
in excess of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible Individuals
or other third party funders, the Department may elect to;
7-1. Renegotiate the rales for payment hereunder, in which event new rates shall be established;
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the.Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement in

excess of costs;

06/27/14

Exhibit C - Special Provisions Contractor Initials

Page l of 5 Date ■^h 1 * ^



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C

7.3. Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor in which event failure to make
such repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor is
permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department for all funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services
provided to any individual who Is found by the Department to be ineligible for such services at
any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS; MAINTENANCE, RETENTION, AUDIT, DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

8. Maintenance of Records: In addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor
covenants and agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period:
8.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs

and other expenses incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all
Income received or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be
maintained in accordance with accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and
properly reflect all such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to Include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs such as
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of
in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the
Department.

8.2. Statistical Records: Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of

services during the Contract Period, which records shall include all records of application and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records
regarding the provision of services and all invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
payment for such services.

8.3. Medical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the
Contractor shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

9. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the close of the
agency fiscal year. It is recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, "Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non
Profit Organizations" and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations,
Programs. Activities and Functions, issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as
they pertain to financial compliance audits.
9.1. Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the

Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuant to
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

9.2. Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state
or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department, all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an
exception.

10. Confidentiality of Records: All information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected
in connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shall not
t>e disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws and the regulations of
the Department regarding the use and disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made to
public officials requiring such information In connection with their official duties and for purposes
directly connected to the administration of the services and the Contract: and provided further, that
the use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning a recipient for any purpose not
directly connected with the administration of the Department or the Contractor's responsibilities with
respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on written-consent of the recipient, his
attorney or guardian.

Exhibit C - Special Provisions Contractor Initials.
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Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained in
the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

11. Reports: Fiscal and Statistical; The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at the following
times if requested by the Department.
11.1. Interim Financial Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed description of

all costs and non-allowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and
containing such other information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to
justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department.

11.2. Final Report: A final report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days after the end of the term
of this Contract. The Final Report shall be in a form satisfactory to the Department and shall
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated in the Proposal
and other information required by the Department.

12. Completion of Services; Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation
hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as,
by the terms of the Contract are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or
survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that If. upon review of the
Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

13. Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during or resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall include the following
statement:

13.1. The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the btate
of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, with funds provided in part
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human Services.

14. Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership: All materials (written, video, audio) produced or
purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from DHHS before printing, production,
distribution or use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and all original materials
produced, including, but not limited to. brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contract without
prior written approval from DHHS.

15. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations; In the operation of any facilities
for providing services, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal,
state, county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which shall Impose an order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the
operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental license or
permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services,
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall
comply with all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshal and
the local fire protection agency, and shall be In conformance with local building and zoning codes, by
laws and regulations.

16. Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP): The Contractor will provide an Equal Employment
Opportunity Plan (EEOP) to the Office for Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs (OCR), if it has
received a single award of $500,000 or more. If the recipient receives $25,000 or more and has 50 or

Exhibit C - Special Provisions Contractor Initials
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more employees, It will maintain a current EEOP on file and submit an EEOP Certification Form to the
OCR, certifying that Its EEOP is on file. For recipients receiving less than $25,000, or public grantees
with fewer than 50 employees, regardless of the amount of the award, the recipient will provide an
EEOP Certification Form to the OCR certifying it is not required to submit or maintain an EEOP. Non
profit organizations, Indian Tribes, and medical and educational institutions are exempt from the
EEOP requirement, but are required to submit a certification form to the OCR to claim the exemption.
EEOP Certification Forms are available at: htlp:/Avww.ojp.usdoj/about/ocr/pdfs/cert.pdf.

17. Limited English Proficiency (LEP): As clarified by Executive Order13166, Improving Access to
Services for persons with Limited English Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, national origin
discrimination includes discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure
compliance with the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 and Title VI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964, Contractors must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have
meaningful access to its programs.

18. Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contractor Employee Whistleblower Protections: The
following shall apply to all contracts that exceed the Simplified Acquisition Threshold as defined in 48
CFR 2.101 (currently. $150,000)

Contractor Employee Whistleblower Rights and Requirement To Inform Employees of

Whistleblower Rights (SEP 2013)

(a) This contract and employees working on this contract will be subject to the whistleblower rights
and remedies in the pilot program on Contractor employee whistleblower protections established at
41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 828 of the National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L.
112-239) and FAR 3.908.

(b) The Contractor shall inform its employees in writing, in the predominant language of the workforce,
of employee whistleblower rights and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712, as described in section
3.908 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation.

(c) The Contractor shall insert the substance of this clause, including this paragraph (c), in all
subcontracts over the simplified acquisition threshold.

19. Subcontractors: DHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountability for the function(s). Prior to
subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor's ability to perform the delegated
functlon(s). This is accomplished through a written agreement that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or imposing sanctions if
the subcontractor's performance is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual
conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance
with those conditions.

When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the following;
19.1. Evaluate the prospective sut>contractor's ability to perform the activities, before delegating

the function

19.2. Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities and how sanctions/revocation will be managed if the sutxontractor's
performance is not adequate

19.3. Monitor the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis

«.

/
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19.4. Provide to DHHS an annual schedule identifying all subcontractors, delegated functions and
responsibilities, and when the subcontractor's performance will be reviewed

19.5. DHHS shall, at its discretion, review and approve all subcontracts.

If the Contractor identifies deficiencies or areas for improvement are identified, the Contractor shall
take corrective action.

DEFINITIONS

As used in the Contract, the following terms shall have the following meanings;

COSTS: Shall mean those direct and indirect items of expense determined by the Department to be
allowable and reimbursable in accordance with cost and accounting principles established in accordance
with state and federal laws, regulations, rules and orders.

DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT GUIDELINES: Shall mean that section of the Contractor Manual which is

entitled "Financial Management Guidelines" and which contains the regulations governing the financial
activities of contractor agencies which have contracted with the State of NH to receive funds.

PROPOSAL: If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a form or forms
required by the Department and containing a description of the Services to be provided to eligible
individuals by the Contractor in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract and setting forth
the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided under the Contract.

UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible individuals hereunder, shall mean that
period of time or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified in Exhibit B of the
Contract.

FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Wherever federal or state laws, regulations, rules, orders, and policies, etc. are
referred to In the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean all such laws, regulations, etc. as
they may be amended or revised from the time to time.

CONTRACTOR MANUAL: Shall mean that document prepared by the NH Department of Adrhinistrative
Services containing a compilation of all regulations promulgated pursuant to the New Hampshire
Administrative Procedures Act. NH RSA Ch 541-A, for the purpose of implementing State of NH and
federal regulations promulgated thereunder.

SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: The Contractor guarantees that funds provided under this
Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.

Exhibit C - Special Provisions Contractor Initials ̂  ̂
06/27/t4 Page 5 of 5 Date _i2) iT



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C-1

REVISIONS TO GENERAL PROViSiONS

1. Subparagraph 4 of the General Provisions of this contract, Conditional Nature of Agreement, is
replaced as follows;

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, ail obligations of the State
hereunder, including without limitation, the continuance of payments, in whole or in part,
under this Agreement are contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds,
including any subsequent changes to the appropriation or availability of funds affected by
any state or federal legislative or executive action that reduces, eliminates, or otherwise
modifies the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and the Scope of
Services provided in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in whole or in part. In no event shall the
State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of appropriated or available funds. In
the event of a reduction, termination or modification of appropriated or available funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds become available, if ever. The
State shall have the right to reduce, terminate or modify services under this Agreement
immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such reduction, termination or modification.
The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other source or account into the
Account(s) identified in block 1.6 of the General Provisions, Account Number, or any other
account, in the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

2. Subparagraph 10 of the General Provisions of this contract. Termination, is amended by adding the
following language;

10.1 The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of
the State, 30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the State is exercising its
option to terminate the Agreement.

10.2 In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early
termination, develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement, including but not limited to, identifying the present and future needs of clients
receiving sen/ices under the Agreement and establishes a process to meet those needs.

10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detailed
information to support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to, any information or
data requested by the State related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan
and shall provide ongoing communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State as
requested.

10.4 In the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients receiving
services under the Agreement are transltioned to having services delivered by another entity
including contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for
uninterrupted delivery of services in the Transition Plan.

10.5 The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected individuals
about the transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed communications in its
Transition Plan submitted to the State as described atx>ve.

3. The Division reserves the right to renew the Contract for up to two (2) additional years, subject to
the continued availability of funds, satisfactory performance of services and approval by the
Governor and Executive Council.

Exhibit C-1 - Revisions to Standard Provisions Contractor Initials^* .
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit D

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle 0; 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification;

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS
/•

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V. Subtitle D;41 U.S.C. 701 etseq.). The January 31.
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part II of the May 25. 1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub
contractors). prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by. inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State
may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year Covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send it to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street.

Concord, NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:
1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,

dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee's
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition:

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and
1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations

occurring in the workplace;
1.3. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be

given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);
1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of

employment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5. Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency

Exhibit D - Certification regarding Drug Free Contractor Initials
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has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification numl}er{s) of each affected grant;

1.6, Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including

termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs 1.1, 1.2, 1.3, 1.4, 1.5, and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)
145 Hollis Street, Manchester. NH 03101 104 Tarrytown Road, Manchester, NH 03103

1245 Elm Street, Manchester, NH 03101 88 McGregor Street. Manchester. NH 03102

Check □ if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

Contractor Name: Manchester Community Health Center

Date Nanw^is McCracken
Title: President/CEO

Exhibit D - Certification regarding Drug Free Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit E

CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification;

US DEPARTMENT OP HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
"Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
"Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
"Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
"Medicaid Program under Title XIX
"Community Services Block Grant under Title VI
"Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or.cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-l.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made of entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Contractor Name: Manchester Community Health Center

c3/7/(r
Date Name: Kris McCracken

Title: President/CEO

Exhibit E - Certification Regarding Lobbying Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit F

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION

AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Deljarment,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification;

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification set out below.

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial
of participation In this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (DHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in
this transaction.

3. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

5. The terms "covered transaction," "debarred," "suspended," "ineligible," "lower tier covered
transaction," "participant," "person," "primary covered transaction," "principal," "proposal," and
"voluntarily excluded," as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered Into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the
clause titled "Certification Regarding Debarmenl, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions." provided by DHHS, without modification, in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which It determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may, but is not required to, check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records
in order to render In good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and

4^Exhibit F - Cehtfication Regarding Debarmenl, Suspension Contractor Initials
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information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its
principals;
11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment. declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;
11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had

a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal. State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

11.3. are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (l)(b)
of this certification; and

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal. State or local) terminated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS

13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as
defined in 45 CFR Part 76,"certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such

prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will
include this clause entitled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions," without modification in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Contractor Name: Manchester Community Health Center

Date Namei'Kris McCracken
Title; President/CEO

Exhibit F - Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension Contractor Initials
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CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO

FEDERAL NONDiSCRIMINATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND

WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

Contractor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrimination requirements, which may include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or In the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

- the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d. which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity);

. the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C, Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity;

- the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment. State and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

• the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681, 1683, 1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination:

- 28 C.F.R. pi. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures): Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

• 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2. 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities In connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarment.
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In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified In Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

I. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
Indicated above.

* Contractor Name: Manchester Community Health Center

St^hr
Date Name: Kris McCracken

Title: President/CEO
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted In any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18. if the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The "
law does not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicald funds, and portions of facilities used for Inpatlent drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result In the Imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/or the Imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Contractor Identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
with all appllcable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Contractor Name: Manchester Community Health Center

3hl\^
Dale Name: Kris McCracken

Title: President/CEO

Exhibit H - Certification Regarding Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit I

HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABLITY ACT

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the Genera! Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act. Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45
0FR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, "Business
Associate" shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement.and "Covered
Entity" shall mean the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

(1) Definitions.

a. "Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. "Business Associate" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. "Covered Entitv" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45.
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. "Designated Record Set"shall have the same meaning as the term "designated record set"
in 45CFR Section 164.501.

e. "Data Aooreaation" shall have the same meaning as the term "data aggregation' in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f. "Health Care Operations" shall have the same meaning as the term "health care operations"
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. "HITECH Act" means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act,- TitleXIII, Subtitle D. Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160, 162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i. "Individual" shall have the same meaning as the term "individual" in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative In accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g).

j. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United Slates
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. "Protected Health Information" shall have the same meaning as the term "protected health
Information" in 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the information created or received by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.

3/2014 Exhibit I Contractor Initials J
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I. "Required bv Law" shall have the same meaning as the term "required by law" in 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

m. "Secretary" shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
his/her designee.

n. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart 0. and amendments thereto.

o. "Unsecured Protected Health information" means protected health information that is not

secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

p. Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160, 162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the

HITECH

Act.

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

a. Business Associate shall not use. disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including but not limited to all
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
I. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate:
II. As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
III. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered

Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party. Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law. without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Business

3/2014 Exhibit I Contractor Initials
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Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted ail
remedies.

8. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

(3) ObliQations and Activities of Business Associate.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected

health Information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health Information and/or any security incident that may have an impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

b. The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to:

o The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;

0 The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
disclosure was made;

0 Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed
0 The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been

mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

c. The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy, Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

d. Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

e. Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (I). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business associate
agreements with Contractor's intended business associates, who will be receiving PHI
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pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

f. . Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set. the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

i. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to

such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

j. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

k. In the event any Individual requests access to. amendment of, or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall.have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

1. Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been othen/vise agreed to in
the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as Business j
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Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) Obligations of Covered Entity

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

0. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI.

(5) Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible. Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

(6) Miscellaneous

a. Definitions and Regulatory References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to Include this Exhibit I, to
a Section In the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

c. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule.
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e. Segregation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit I are declared severable.

f. Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) I, the

L  defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37), shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit

OeDartment of Health ̂ Human Services Manchester Community Health Center

eS Name of the Contractor

ignature of ̂thorized Representative

Nanw of Authori?^ Reorepresentative

Title of Authorized Representative

Signa(ui??f Authorized Representative

Kris McCracken

Name of Authorized Representative

President/CEO

Title of Authorized Representative

Date Date
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY
ACT fFFATA^ COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010. to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
Initial award is belovv $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the dale of the award.
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:
1. Name of entity
2. Amount of award

3. Funding agency
4. NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
5. Program source

6. Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7. Location of the entity
8. Principle place of performance
9. Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS #)
10. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:

10.1. More than 80% of annual gross reveriues are from the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than $25M annually and

10.2. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certification;
The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act.

Contractor Name; Manchester Community Health Center

Pate Name: Kns McCracken
Title: President/CEO

Exhibit J - Cerlification Regarding the Federal Furwjing Contractor Initials
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FORMA

As the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, I certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

1. The DUNS number for your entity is: 928664937

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1} 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000.pr more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or
cooperative agreements?

NO YES

If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here

If the answer to #2 above is YES. please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
1966?

NO YES

If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here

If the answer to #3 above Is NO. please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

CU/OHHS/ti0713
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nHHS INFORMATION SECURITY REQUIREMENTS

1. Confidential Infonnation; In addition to Paragraph #9 of the General Provisions (P-37) for the purpose of this
SOW, the Department's Confidential information includes any and all information owned or managed by the
State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS)
or accessed in the course of performing contracted services - of which collection, disclosure, protection, and
disposition is governed by state or federal law or regulation. This information includes, but is not limited to
Personal Health Information (PHI), Personally Identifiable Information (Pll), Federal Tax Information (FTI),
Social Security Numbers (SSN), Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential
information.

2. The vendor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department confidential information collected,
processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery of contracted services. Minimum expectations include:

2.1. Contractor shall not store or transfer data collected in connection with the services rendered
under this Agreement outside of the United States. This includes backup data and Disaster
Recovery locations.

2.2. Maintain policies and procedures to protect Department confidential information throughout the
information lifecycle, where applicable, (from creation, transformation, use, storage and secure
destruction) regardless of the media used to store the data (i.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.).

2.3. Maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to contractor systems that collect, transmit, or
store Department confidential information whereapplicable.

2.4. Encrypt, at a minimum, any Department confidential data stored on portable media, e.g., laptops. USB
drives, as well as when transmitted over public networks like the Internet using current industry
standards and best practices for strong encryption.

2.5. Ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to detect potential security events that can
impact State of NH systems and/or Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

2.6. Provide security awareness and education for its employees, contractors and sub-contractors in
support of protecting Department confidentialinformation

2.7. Maintain a documented breach notification and incident response process. The vendor will contact the
Department within twenty-four 24 hours to the Department's contract manager, and additional email
addresses provided in this section, of a confidential information breach, computer security incident, or
suspected breach which affects or includes any State of New Hampshire systems that connect to the
State of New Hampshire network.

2.7.1 ."Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section 164.402 of Title 45, Code of
Federal Regulations. "Computer Security Incident" shall have the same meaning "Computer
Security Incident" in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U.S. Department of Commerce,

Breach notifications will be sent to the following email addresses:

2.7.1.1. DHHSChieflnformationOfficer@dhhs.nh.qov

2.7.1.2. DHHSInformationSecurilvOffice@dhhs.nh.qov

2.8. If the vendor will maintain any Confidential Information on its systems (or its sub-contractor systems),
the vendor will maintain a documented process for securely disposing of such data upon request or
contract termination; and will obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed
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by the vendor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster recovery
operations. When no longer in use. electronic media containing State of New Hampshire data shall be
rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program in accordance with industry-accepted standards for
secure deletion, or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example, degaussing). The vendor
will document and certify in writing at time of the data destruction, and will provide written certification
to the Department upon request. The written certification will include all details necessary to
demonstrate data has t)een properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable, regulatory and
professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly evaluated by the State and the vendor
prior to destruction.

2.9. If the vendor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement supporting the services for
State of New Hampshire, the vendor will maintain a program of an internal process or processes that

defines specific security expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a
minimum match those for the vendor, including breach notification requirements.

3. The vendor will work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable State of New Hampshire and
Department system access and authorization policies and procedures, systems access forms, and computer
use agreements as part of obtaining and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements will
t>e completed and signed by the vendor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to system access being

authorized.

4. If the Department determines the vendor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45 CFR 160.103. the vendorwill
v/ork with the Department to sign and execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement (BAA) with the
Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the agreement.

5. The vendor will work with the Department at its request to complete a survey. The purpose of the survey is to
enable the Department and vendor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the vendor engagement. The survey will be completed annually, or an alternate time

frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by the vendor, or the Department may request the
survey be completed when the scope of the engagement between the Department and the vendor changes.
The vendor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire or Department data
offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless prior express written consent is obtained from

the appropriate authorized data owner or leadership member within the Department.

6. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall make efforts to investigate
the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to prevent future breach and minimize any damage or
loss resulting from the breach. The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and
recovery from the breach, including but not limited to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs and costs

associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to the breach.
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